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REMARKS

ON THE
TRIAL OF MR. FAUNTLEROY.

—aim e

Humanity teaches us to pity the unfortunate ; feel for
the distressed ; and to eonsole and cheer the wretched
vietim of justice : but, in the present case, we feel totally
at a loss to offer any thing like palliation, in defence of the
conduct of Mr, FaunrtLEroy. We should not wish to be
accused of harshness and cruelty towards bim : but the
plain and simple truth is, that Mr, F. sinned with his eyes
open; it was not the impulse of the moment that hurried
him to commit the crime of Forcery ; but it was the
cold, deliberate result of years. In a commercial country
like England, forgery is a erime of the greatest magni-
tude ; and the mischief is distributed to a most alarming
extent, before the evil is traced to its proper source. A
single instance did not satisfy the appetite of Mr. F.;
but Forgery after Forcery was committed by him,
higher in amount and consequence ; and yet with all the
routine of business, »Unmindful that by his nefarious
conduct, the hopes, happiness, and prospects of hun-
dreds have been nearly, if not quite, ruined, and without
the chance of recovering their losses.

Since the time of the PErrEavus and the days of Dr.
Dopp, no case of forgery has excited such universal
attention. But those cases are “ trifles, light as air,” by
comparison, when we are told from excellent authority,
that the immense sum of 16,0001, per annum was required
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to pay off the interest of the forgeries committed by Mr.
Fauntleroy, in order to prevent the detection of his crimes.

The whole of the forgeries put together, which have
been committed against the Bank of England, by various
individuals, do not amount to the sum which they are
likely to suffer by the deceptions of Mr. FAUNTLEROY.
FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND POUNDS, it is
confidently asserted, will scarcely cover the losses of
the Proprietors of the Bank of England. But the most
strange circumstance of the whole affair is, that Mr.
Fauntleroy is positively said to be without a pursE ; and
those persons who are intimately connected with him
assert, that he isalso without mongy, Thereis a mystery
about the Banking Concern in which Mr, Fauntleroy is a
partner,which at the present moment cannot be fathomed ;
but it is expected the truth will be developed.

It is true, that Mr. Fauntleroy was not what is termed
a “ play-man ;” i.e. a frequenti:r of the gambling-
houses ; but asa gambler in the Funps, he had no rival :
his speculations were of the most dashing sort; neck-or-
nothing, not to say frightful! The mede in which the dis-
counts were obtained for the above firm in the City were
managed with great secrecy, ingenuity, and talent. The
trial, at present, has done but little to throw any light

upon the business :

Thus bad begins ;
But worse remains hf:himl_ i

Nov. 1, 1824.



PREVIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES

CONNECTED WITH 8

The étrial,

APPREHENSION OF MR. FAUNTLEROY.
i

It was known that Mr. Fauntleroy was the most generally acting

rtner of the banking-house, and usually, when in town, nominally
resided there, Plank, on receiving the warrant for his apprehension,
went, about seven o’clock the same evening, to the house in Berners-
street, and inquired for Mr. Fauntleroy, but was answered that that
gentleman dined from home, and it was uncertain what time he would
return. Plank determined to await that time, walked about the strect
near the house, with another officer, the whole of that night, until
seven o'clock in the morning. Mr. Fauntleroy not having arrived
home by that time, Plank took it for granted that he had taken his rest
somewhere else for the night, and the officer therefore returned to his
own house, leaving, however, an officer still on the watch in Berners-
street. About ten o'clock, his usual hour of business, Mr. Fauntleroy
was seen to enter the banking-house, and information was dispatched
to Plank to that effect. Plank instantly proceeded, accompanied by
Mr, Goodchild, to Berners-street, and, on his way, Plank took the pre-
caution of calling on a tradesman, and getting from him a check on the
banking-house of Marsh and Co. of 10/ for ten sovereigns, saying that
he wanted to send a 101. note into the country. This precaution the
officer took, in order, as he did notintend to enter exactly with Mr.
Goodchild, to have a pretext for delay in the counting-house, to get
yayment of the check, until he should see Mr, Goodchild in conversa-
tion with Mr. Fauntleroy. When Plank, however, entered the bank,
immediately after Mr. Goodchild, he saw this rentleman in a small
office, at the end of the counting-house, spuaiing to a gentleman
seated at a desk, whom he knew to be Mr, Fauntleroy. The officer
did not, therefore, wait to present his check, but pushing on instantly
by the clerks, saying that he wanted to speak one word to Mr. Faunt-
. leroy, he entered the place, where the latter and Mr. Goodchild werein

conversation, and closing the door, made known his name and business
at once, at the same time producing his warrant. Mr. Fauntleroy he-
came dreadfully agitated, and exclaimed, “ Good God! cannot this
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business be settled?’ Plank begged of him to make no noise, but to
walk out quietly for a few minutes, and they would there talk about a
settlement. Mr. Fauntleroy then signed a few blank checks,witha very
unsteady hand, and giving them to one of the clerks, told him he should
go out for a few minutes ; and putting on his hat, walked out with-
cut chservation, by the side of the officer, who immediately conducted
him to the private house of Mr. Conant. Mr. Fauntleroy being now
tully aware of the dreadful situation in which he was placed, expressed
a desire that the principal clerk at the banking-house should be sent
for, that he might give him some directions about the business of the
day, which would otherwise be thrown into confusion, as it was not
likely that any of the other partners would call in, it being his day of
attendance.

Mr. Conant consented to the clerk being sent for, on the condition
that any conversation that passed between them should be in the pre-
sence of the officer, to which Mr. Fauntleroy readily assented; anid
when Mr. Tyson, the clerk, arrived, the only conversation he had with
him was to desire that he would instantly send for Mr. Graham, who
was in town, and also dispatch an express to Bogner, in Sussex, for
Mr. Stracey, who was sojourning there, to come to town instantly.

By this time Mr. Hume, Mr. Gooedchild, and Mr. Freshfield, one of
the solicitors to the Bank of England, were in attendance; and Mr.
Fauntleroy being placed in proper security, Plank proceeded, accom-
panied by Mr. Freshfield, to make search at the banking-house
amongst the prisoner's papers for any documents that might throw
further light on the practices with which he was charged. When ar-

‘rived at the bank, Mr. Graham had by accident just entered, and on
learning the situation of his unhappy partner, he was thunderstruck
for the moment, and scarcely able to articulate. Mr, Graham had not
well recovered from his shock, when Mr. Marsh, a very eiderly gen-
tleman, another partner, came in, and the unfortunate affair being
disclosed to him, that gentleman dro Eed into a chair, and became al-
most insensible from the shock, ’F ese two gentlemen now threw
open every place, and gave every facility to the search of the officer,
declaring that they had no object in secrecy, and that the whole of
their affuirs and travsactions should be open to a thorough investi-
gation. Plank made the necessary search, but found no papers ofany
consequence to the case under investigation. Mr, Graham then ac-
companied Mr. Freshfield and Plank to Mr. Conant’s house.

Ever since the appearance of the advertisement from Messrs. Marsh,
Stracey, and Graham, of the banking-house in Berners-street, suspend-
ing payment on account of the conduct of their partner, Mr. Fauntle-
roy, the public mind has been in an extraordinary state of excitement.
The account of the committal of Mr. Fauntleroy, and the reported
cause of that committal, naturally added to the general agitation. In
fact, hardly any thing has been talked of, either in the city or at the
west end of the town, but this singular event, and all sorts of rumours
are current on the subject,

Mr. Fauntleroy hat[] undergone a private examination, in the house
of Mr, Conant, previous to his committal. The accused had been the
active and managing partner in the above-mentioned banking-house
for anumber of years. Above ten years ago he was 3ppuime§ Jjoint=
trustee with J. D). Hume, Esq. (of the Customs,) and another gentle-
man, to the estate of a family of eight children (of which we forbear
mentioning the name), deprived at an early age of their parents. The
first forgery committed by the accused took [ﬁau:c more than ten years
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ago, when the names of the other trustees were forged to different in-
struments, and ultimately to a power of attorney, by which 30,000/,
stock was sold out by Mr. Fauntleroy. To conceal this fraud, Lie was
compelled sometime afterwards to replace the stock whenithad greatly
risen. The discovery took place from one of the joint-trustees acci-
dently investigating the accounts at the Bank of Enﬁhnd, which he
had been induced to do, in consequence of the approach of November,
when the whole money held in trust was, by an order of the Court of
Chancery, to be paid into the hands of the Accountant-General, The
trustee was panic-struck at the discovery, and communicated the fact
to the other partners of the bank, when those gentlemen expressed
their surprise and great alarm at the conduct of their partner. An ap-
plication was made to Mr. Conant, at Marlborough-street Office, and
the whole of the facts then disclosed having been laid before him, he
employed Plank, the chief officer, to apprehend Mr. Fauntleroy, having
previously taken the deposition on cath of Mr. Hume, by which he
felt authorized to issue a warrant for the allezed felony. When Mr.
F. appeared before the Magistrate, he fully acquitted his partners of
any participation or knowledge of his delinquency. Mr. Hume was
sworn.and examined to prove one act of forgery for 10,000!. on the

art of the accused; and at the termination of the investigation, which
asted several hours, the prisoner was committed to the House of Cor-
rection, by virtue of a warrant, of which the following has been handed
to us as a copy i—

“ Police Office, Marlborough-street, Sept, 10, 1824,

% To the Governor of the House of Correction, Cold Bath-fields, or
his Deputy.

Receive into your custody the body of Henry Fauntleroy, charged on
the oath of J. D. Hume and others, before me, John Ed. Conaat,
Esq. one of His Majesty’s Justices of the Peace, acting in and for the
county of Middlesex, with having feloniously forged an(ig uttered as true,
a certain instrument, with intent to defraud the Governor and Com-
pany of the Bank of England, and others, of the sum of 10,000L, and
him saiely keep in your custody for re-examination before me.

(Signed) % J. E, Cowant,”

On the prisoner arriving at the House of Correction, orders were
given that two persons should sit up with him night and day, to pre-
vent his attempting his life, which order was strictly complied with. The
prisoner’s partners were not admitted to him without special orders from
the Magistrate, and then in the presence of an officer. Nopaperwasal-
lowed to zo to or from him without its first being submitted to the com-
mitting Justice, Mr. Conant. Sir Peter Laurie and several other gen-
tlemen went to the House of Correction to inquire if the account was
true, that the prisoner had committed suicide, which was currently re-
Eurtlad in the city. The answer given was, that no such circumstance

ad taken place. At times the accused was in the most dejected state of
mind, in short, in a state nearly approaching to despair; and at other
times he appeared rather cheerful, and expressed to the governor, Mr.
Vickery, Ins gratitude for his kind and humane attention to him in his
unfortunate situation.

MARLEBOROUGH STREET.—(First Pusric ExaminaTion),
This Office was again thronged with creditors of the banking-house
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of Messrs, Marsh, Stracey, Graham and Fauntleroy, in Berners-street,
who were anxious to be present at the expected examination of Mr.
Fauntleroy. DMr, Conant took his seat on the bench with Sir George
Farrant, Mr. Dyer, and Mr. Roe, the other magistrates. g

At a few minutes before four o'clock, Mr. Fauntleroy was placed in
front of the bar, escorted by Plank and Schofield, the officers. = The un-
fortunate prisoner, who appears not to be more than 40 or 43 years of
age, is a man of the middle size, fair complexion, grey eyes, cropped
hair, falling on his forehead, nearly grey, a good profile, or whatwould
be called a mild Roman contour of visage, and fresh healthy com-
plexion. He was dressed in a blue coat and trowsers, and half-boots,
with a light-coloured waistcoat. He leaned upon his left arm at the bar,
holding his hat down in his right hand. There was a decent and gen-
tlemanly composure in his manner; he never raised his hat to endea-
vour to hide his face from the crowd of strangers who gazed upon him,
but kept his eyes fixed upon the ground, not mdifferent to the passing
business, for he heaved a sigh, and remained in front of the bar, with-
out betraying any other symptoms of attention to the judicial proceed-
ings which were pending.

As soon as this unfortunate gentleman was placed in front of the
bar, Mr. Conant requested hin to advance to the table, which be did,
and the Magistrate addressed him as follows:

“ I am much concerned, Mr. Fauntleroy, to hear that a person
of the name of Hanson has introduced himself into your prison
room, and spoke to you in an unpleasant, if not in an insulting,
tone of language. 1 am sorry that such an oceurrence should have
taken place, and I shall, in future, take care and prevent a repe-
tition of it.” :

Mr, Fauntleroy replied in a low tone of voice, He said nothing in-
sulting, Sir, more than intruding himself into my chamber without my
consent,”

The first deposition was that of Mr. William Price, a clerk in the
late banking-house, which was read, as follows:—* It showeth, that
the deponent hath examined a power of attorney, of the date of the
7th December, 1820, for the transfer of 10,000{. Imperial 5 per Cent,
Annuities, which were vested in the co-trusteeship of Henry Faunt-
leroy, of Berners-street, banker, and James Dekin Hume, of the
Custom-house, and John Goodehild, surgeon, of Westerham, Surrey,
in trust for the widow and heir of the late Franeis William
Bellis, of Hockstead Cottage, Surrey ; and further, that the deponent
hath read the names of the subscribing witnesses, James Tyson, and
William Price, a clerk (or clerks) in the house of Messrs. Marsh,
Stracey, Graham, Fauntleroy, and Co.; and that he believes the sig-
nature William Price to be in his own proper handwriting ; but that
respecting theannexed words * in the presence of H. Fauntleroy and
J. . Hume,” the same are, as he verily believes, in the handwriting
of the prisoner, Henry Fauntleroy ; and deponent hath no knowledge
of his ever having wimessed a transfer of the kind in the presence of
the said J. D, Hume, or any other recollection of having witnessed

such transfer, except in the presence of the said Henry Fauntleroy.”
Mr, Price signed his deposition, and was bound over to prosecute, in
the usual form,

The second deposition was that of the Rev. Charles Hardinge, vicar
of Sunbridge, which was made before Mr, Conant, on the 18th Sep-
tember, and showeth that the deponent hath examined a power of
attorney, bearing date the 7th of December, 1820, for the transfer of
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10,0007. Imperial 3 per Cents,, and hath particularly examined the,
attestation therein, signed ¢ Charles Hardinge, vicar of Sunbridge,’
annexed to that which purported to be the signature of John Good-
child, surgeon, of that place; but deponent declareth that the signa-
ture is not his (deponent’s) proper handwriting; nor hath he any
onal acquaintance with the saitfluhn Goodchild, except knowing
m to be a surgeon of the neighbourhoed; nor hath he ever witness-
ed any such transfer, or hath be bad, before or since, a servant named
John Mason, who is represented to have attested the same transfer
with him.
Mr. Freshfiell—As Mr. Hardinge is here, perhaps it would be as
well to take another deposition of his, which bas just been

pnfj!.:ared.

- The Magistrates Fi!.rin assent to this proposition, another deposi-
tion was read, which “ showeth, that a transfer, dated the 7th of Sep-
tember (or December), 1820, for passing 17,500{. Navy 5 per Cent,
Annuities ;" to which, in the same terms as the last, the Rev. Mr.
Hardinge was represented as being, with his supposed servant, John
Mason, an attesting witness to the signature of John Geodchild, was
not in his (deponent’s) proper handwriting, nor had he ever attested
such an instrument.

This deposition was subscribed, and Mr, Hardinge bound over to
give evidence.

The next deposition was that of Sir Richard Hardinge, Bart,, of
Sunbridge, in L:ﬂe county of Kent, which “ showeth, that he (the said
Baronet) hath examined a power of attorney, bearing date the 20th of
October, 1820, for the transfer of 46,000/, Reduced 3 per Cent.Annui-
ties, from the names of Messrs., Fauntleroy, Hume, and Goodchild,
in trust, and hath examined the signature, ¢ Richard Hardinge, Bart.,’
-and that of Mary his wife, now. deceased, as attesting witnesses to the
signature ¢ John Goodchild,” both of which signatures are not in his
or her proper handwriting. He further deposeth, that he knows the
said J-:-En Goodchild to be a surgeon in the neighbourhood, but is not
in habits of intimacy with him, and never witnessed the present or
any other signature of his, to any transfer or power of attorney.”

Sir Richard Hardinge signed his deposition, and was bound over as
an evidence for the prosecution.

In a conversation with Mr, Conant, Sir Richard Hardinge re-
-marked, that his lady’s name was, on the face of it, a clear fabrica-
tion ; but that the pretended handwriting of his, so much resembled
his proper handwriting, that, if shown to him in the ordinary course
of business, he should have admitted it,

My. Conant—But here you speak positively to its not being your
‘handwriting to this instrument.

Sir Richard Hardinge—Certainly I do; because, never having
sizned any transfer of Mr. Goodehild's, it follows, as a consequence, 1
could have nothing to do with this. 1 never, indeed, was in a2 room
with him but once, about seven years ago, when he was employed to
extract a tooth. The signature is certainly not mine,

Another power of attorney was then shown to the Honourable Ba-
ronet, bearing date the 30th of October, 1820, for the transfer uf
53004 4 per Cent. Annuities, and he deposed that his signature to
this transfer, as an attesting witness fur the signature of Jobn Good-
child, was also a forgery.

Mr. Freshfield said that, on a former occasion, evidence had been
taken which was now reduced to the form of depositions; and it
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would be necessary to have them, in the form in which they were
now put, regularly sworn to, : Loif

The first was that of Mr. J. D, Hume, the co-trustee with the
prisoner, which, in the usual terms of professional technicality, re-
pudiated his signature to the transfers already read in evidence, and
further stated, that in a conversation which Jl;uta had a few weeks ago
with the prisoner, the latter informed him, that the whole of the
stock, of which he (Mr. Hume) was in lrustee.ship with him, for the
widow and children of the late Mr. Bellis, remained as it originally
stood in the Bank in their conjoint names, This conversation arose
in consequence of some proceedings in the Court of Chancery, which
rendered it necessary tbat an account should be taken for the Re-
ceiver-General.

Mr. John Goodchild was then called and sworn, and a deposition,
corresponding in all respects with that sworn to by Mr. Hume, was
put into his hand and read; he returned it, and said it was perfectly
correct,

Mr. Freshfield, the solicitor to the Bank, then stated, that if the
friends of Mr. Fauntleroy were desirous, he would be prepared, on
the earliest possible day, to proceed with the charges against him.

Mr. Conant,—1 rather apprehend Mr, Fauntleroy has no wish to

ress the business forward, but is ready to wait the convenience of
Is prosecutors.

Mr. Harmer, who attended as solicitor for Mr. Fauntleroy, re-
marked that no good cowld be obtained by expediting the business
now. It would be impossible for his client to take his trial during
the present Sessions, and therefore the Solicitor of the Bank might
suit his own convenience.

Mr. Conant, addressing the prisoner—I believe, Mr. Fauntleroy,
you are desirous of remaining where you are? (alluding to the prison
in which he is confined). .

Mr, Fauntleroy—If you please, Sir.

The witnesses, whose depositions had been taken, were then bound
over in a recognizance of 40L each, to give evidence against the pri-
soner at the ensuing Old Bailey Sessions, They were as follows :—
Mr. William Price, the Rev. Charles Hardinge, Sir Richard Hardinge,
Mr. John Tyson, who gave evidence similar to Mr. Price on a former
day ; Mr. Goodehild, Mr. Hume, and Mr, Graham, a partner in the
house of Marsh and Co., who proved, at the former examination
that he had received the power ot attorney for the transfer of 10,000.
Imperial Three per Cents. from the hands of the prisoner, in the
form in which it was now produced.

The future examination was then postponed for a week, with an
intimation that an additional delay might take place, if necessary.
Mr. Fauntleroy, who had scarcely looked up during the examination,
was then removed from the bar, and reconducted to prison, in the
manner in which he had been brought in the morning, He seemed
extremely anxious to avoid public observation.

MR. HANSON, OF HAMMERSMITH.

Extracts from a Letter which the above named Gentleman addressed
to the Editor of a Morning Paper :

¢ The charge brought against me by Mr. Conant has been proved
by the unfortunate Mr. Faunteroy to be false. But, Sir, there is
something unkind and croel in Mr, Conant’s attack upon me at this



11

rticular juncture : for he well knew that, for the last few weeks, I
md been libelled and slandered in many of the public journals, for
what I considered the just discharge of my duty as a magistrate.
It is very hard, indeed, %ir, that an old man of seventy-two years of
age, one of the oldest magistrates of the county of Middlesex,
aﬁir nearly twent{' years of indelatigable labour for the benefit of the
county and the public, should be so insulted by so voung a man. Sir,
it was an unprovoked and uncalled for insult: unprovoked, because
we have always been on friendly terms, frequently sitting together on
committees, never opposed to each other, but always acting in unison :
uncalled for, because Mr. Conant knew that I was a visiting justice in
the performance of a duty, But the consequence of my name being
erased from the list of visiting justices does not rest there ; for, by that
act, I also lose my seat in the prison committee, of which I had been a
member for 14 years.

¢ Does Mr. Conant pretend to say, that, because my name has
been struck out of the list of visiting justices, he can prevent me or
any other county magistrate from demanding entrance, and going over
the prisons belonging to the county, and examining every cell and every
room in the prison? No, Sir, I can still do it, notwithstanding his fatile
orders to the contrary. Does he pretend to say that he can prevent a
christian magistrate from endeavouring to persuade the poor unfortu-
nate prisoners to read the sacred scriptures! He must know that no-
thing but an order from the Secretary of State, that no person whatever
Ehal? be permitted to see particular prisoners, can prevent county Ma-
gistrates from examining every part of the prisen, and conversing with
rich as well as poor prisoners.

“ I would now ask you, Sir, whether I have not suffered a very
serious injury from the invidous conduct of some party or parties on
this occasion, in being held up to contempt before the public: and,
what is of still greater importance, in being lessened, most likely, in
the good opinion of my friends and acquaintances, and in the esteem
of those honourable Magistrates who were assembled at the Sessions
House last county day?

“ ¥or the obloquy that has heen cast upon me, I can only say, that
no compensation in gold or silver can ever remunerate me,

% I remain, with the happy feeling of ¢ Mens sibi conscia recti,’

“ Your most ﬂhad)irn‘:nt and very humble servant,
¢ Joux Hawsow,
“ Hammersmith, Oct. 18, 1624,

MARLBOROUGH-STREET.—(SEcoxp ExamiNaTioN.)

Plank arrived at the office in Marlborough-strect at about one
o’clock, and placed Mr. Fauntleroy under the charge of Clements and
Westcott, in the strong room,

Mr. Hume, Mr. Goodchild, Mr. Graham, and one or two other gen-
tlemen, entered and took seats in the private room. In a s%mrt
time after, the Governor and Deputy Governor, and some of the
other Directors of the Bank of England, arrived and took their
stations behind the Magistrate’s chair; besides these, there were
about two dozen other gentlemen, either friends of the Magistrates,
or of some of the parties present. In the private room there were
also two ladies observable, from whose state of agitation and ap-

rent anguish, it was not difficult to eanclade that they bore some
intense interest 1n the proceedings about to take place. They were
under the care of a gentleman, who scemed to use bis best endea-
vours to soothe their anguish,
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Mr. Broderick, the barrister, with Mr, Forbes, the solicitor, and
Mr. Butler, the chief clerk of Mr, Harmer, made their a ce
on behalf of the prisoner, about half-past one, and Mr. Freshfield was
in_attendance on the part of the Bank of England. :

Sir George Farrant, Mr. Conant, and Mr. Dyer, having taken their
seats upon the bench, Plank was directed to produce his prisoner ; but
Mr. Butler said, that as Mr. Harmer, who had heard the former ex-
amination, was not present, perhaps the Magistrates would allow Mr.
Broderick to look over the depositions for a few minutes in the private
room, This wish was acceceded to; and the clerk of the office took
the depositions into the private room for that purpose. Ina very short
time Mr. Broderick returned, and a final order was now given to Plank
to bring in Mr, Fauntleroy.

The prisoner entered not, as on the first oceasion, with a hurried
step and agitated manner, but walked firmly into the office, and,
without being directed thereto, instantly took his station, leaning,
as at the former time, against and outside the bar, within whic
prisonersare usually placed, but which now contained some of the wit-
nesses to be examined. Mr. Fauntleroy was dressed, as on the former
occasion, in a blue coat, blue trousers, and white waistcoat, but now
wore a black handkerchiet round his neck, whereas, at the first exami-
nation he wore a white one. Iis countenance betrayed a much more
settled state of mind than when we last saw him ; he seemed in good
Lealth, not atall agitated, and almost, in appearance, indifferent to the
whole proceeding.  He, however, oceasionally heaved a sigh.

Mr. Freshfield, addressing the Magistrate, said, that on the former
examination there was one case, that of a warrant of attorney for
10,0007., completed on the dpstrt of the prosecution ; and they had also
gone in part into the evidence respecting -three - other warrants of
attorney for other sums; namely, one for 46,0000,w0ne for 17,0001,
and one for 5300 ; and he would now proceed to complete the evi-
dence in their cases also. '

George Edward Grabam, late partner with the prisoner in the
Bank ot Marsh and Co., was then sworn, and the following deposition
read over to him—* That on the 30th of October, 1820, %e received
from the prisoner, Henry Fauntleroy, the power of attorney now pro-
duced for 46,0000, three per cent. annuities, with directions to sell
the same, which he accordingly did on the 2d of November, 1820;
and the signature of G. E. Graham to the warrant of attorney, as hav-
ing 5o sold the same, was signed,” 'This deposition Mr. Graham said
was true.

The deposition of James Tyson was next read, and went to say,
that the signature of this deponent, sizned as an attesting witness to
the names of Henry Fauntleroy and J. D. Hume, on this power of at-
torney, was the proper siznature of this deponent, and that he did so
witness the said Henry Fauntleroy subscribe his name to this docu-
ment ; but that the words * Clerks in the bankinz-house of Marsh
and Co, also wimesses to the signature of J. D. Hume,” were not
then written ; and that they, as well as the signature, J. D. Hume, are
in the proper handwriting of the prisoner; and deponent further saith,
that he never did witness the signature of J. D, Hume to any instru-
ment whatever. This witness was sworn, and signed his deposition.

Joseph Golightly deposed that he, as well as the last deponent, was
a clerk in the hanking-house of Marsh and Co.; that he has examined
the power of attorney now produced, and that the signature “Jos,
Golightly,” attached thereto, as an attesting witness to the name of
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Henry Fauntleroy, is the true and proper signature of this deponent,
and that he did so witness the signature of the said Henry Fauntle-
roy; but that the words « Clerks to Messrs. Marsh and Co. bankers,
also witnesses to the signature of John D. Hume,” were not then
written ; and that these words, as well as the name of ¢ J. D. Hume,”
sicned to the power of attorney, are in the proper handwriting of the
prisoner at the bar. :

John Goodchild, surgeon, of Elm Tree Road, Regent's Park, de-
posed, that in the month of May, 1818, he, the deponent, together with

. D. Hume, of Pinner’s-park, in the county of Kent, and Henry
Fauntleroy, of Berners-street, banker, were appointed trustees to the
sum of 46,000l. 5 per Cent, Imperial Annuities, vested by Francis
William Bellis, of Oxted Cottage, in the county of Surrey, in these
funds, to be for the use and benefit of Susannah Bellis, his wife, and
her children ; that the said securities were deposited in the Bank of
England, with power to the prisoner, Henry Fauntleroy, to receive the
usual dividends on the same, and place them to the credit of the said
Francis William Bellis, in his account with the banking-house of
Marsh and Co., in which the said Henry Fauntleroy was a partner ;
that the said dividends were regularly accounted for by the pri-
soner until the death of the said Francis William Bellis, in
January last; that proceedings have lately been commenced in the
Court of Chancery, to arrange all the funds of . the estate of the said
deceased Francis William Bellis; in consequence of which, this depo-
nent, in conjunction with the other trustee, J. D. Hume, has had
several interviews with the prisoner, within a few weeks, on the sub-
ject of their trust; and on all these cccasions the prisoner stated that
the said stock was still standing in the names of the said trustees in
the Bank of England. And deponent further saith, that he hath exa-
mined the power of attorney now produced, purperting to be signed by
him, giving authority to the said Henry Fauntleroy to dispose of the
said 46,000{. 3 per Cent. Annuities, but that the signature * John
Goodchild,” attached thereto, 1s not his proper signature, nor did he
ever give any authority whatever to the said Henry Fauntleroy to dis-
pose of the said stock.—Mr. Goodchild signed his deposition.

Mr. Freshfield next produced a warrant of attorney for 17,5000
Navy 5 per cents, and called C. E. Graham, who, as in the former
case, deposed to his having sold out this stock under the directions
of Mr. Fauntleroy. The attesting witnesses to the signatures of J, D,
Hume and Henry Fauntleroy were, James Tyson and William Price,
Clerks in the banking-house ; and these depositions went, as on the
former occasions, to say that, as regarded the signature of Mr. Faunt-
leroy, their attestation was genuine, but false as to that of Mr. Hume,
whom they never saw subscribe to any document.

Mr. Goodchild again deposed as to the signature “ John Good-
child,” to this warrant of attorney, not being in his handwriting,

Another power of attorney was produced tor the sum of 53004 3 per
Cent. Consolidated Fund, and on this document the same evidence
was given by Mr. Goodchild as to the forgery of his signature, and the
attesting witnesses, Tyson and Golightly, as to their having witnessed
the siznature “ Henry Fauntleroy,” but not that of J. D. Hume, as
they were made appear to do; and this last signature they deposed to
be in the bandwriting of the prisoner. Mr. Graham, when giving his
deposition as to the sale of the stock under this last warrant of at-
torney, said that he had now to correct himself as to the fact of his
having received this power of attorney, as stated in the deposition, at

Y
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the hanking-house in Berners-street, from Mr. Fauntleroy. He could
not positively say whether he received the power of attorney from Mr.
Fauntleroy, or from his broker in the city, by the directions of Mr,
Fauntleroy, but he was sure that one or the other was the case; if
from Mr. Fauntleroy himself, he certainly did receive it at the bank-
ing-house; and if from a broker, it must be from either Mr, Simpson
or Mr. Spurling, who must have accompanied him to make the
transfer, Mr. Graham said, that this alteration’ in his depositions
applied to all the other cases on which he had before given his testi-
mony

"These depositions were accordingly altered by the clerk, and Mr.
Graham re-sworn to them. P

James Tyson, the clerk, was again called, and asked to look at a re-

uest to act, written on the hﬁ of this power of attorney; it ran

thus :—

‘¢ We shall feel obliged by the within being acted upon to-day, as
the money is wanted for a particular purpose, yesterday being a holy-

Vi
“ Nov. 2, 1820, “ Marsu, Siearp & Co.

The witness Tyson deposed that the whole of this request to the
Bank of England was in the handwriting of the prisoner.

Mr. Freshfield said, that having now completed all the cases con-
nected with the trust in which Mr, Hume and Mr. Goodchild’s names
were concerned, he should proceed to another charge against the
prisoner.

The first was a warrant of attorney, purporting to be signed by Miss
Frances Young, authorizing the prisoner to dispose of 50001, 3 per
Cent. Consols, dated the 31st day of May, 1815,

James Tyson, clerk in the late banking-house of Marsh and Co.
deposed that the signature of James Tyson, as an attesting witness to
the name of Frances Young to the warrant of attorney now produced,
was not his signature ; nor did he ever see Miss Young sign her name
1o any instrument. _

John Watson, also a clerk in the bank of Marsh and Co., deposed
that the name, John Watson, as an attesting witness to the signature
of Miss Young, was not in his handwriting,

A demand for permission to act, on !he%ack of this power of attor-
ney, the two last witnesses deposed was in the handwriting of the,
prisoner. _

Robert Browning, jun., deposed, that in the month of May, 1815,
he was a clerk inthe Three per Cent. Consols Transfer Office, in the
Bank of England ; and that the prisoner applied, in that month, with
the power of attorney now produced, to have the 5000. stock men-
tioned therein transferred from the name of Frances Young to that of
’:;-’illia.m Flower, of the Stock Exchange, which was agcordingly

one.
Miss Frances Young, of Christchurch, in the county of Sussex, a
lady of middle age, who seemedin greatdistress of mind, was now led
mto the office by the gentleman who accompanied her, and being
sworn, deposed that in the month of May, 1815, the sum of 5450L,
her property, stood in the Bank of England in her name, in the 3 per
Cent. Consols ; that Henry Fauntleroy, banker, of Berners-street, had
received from her a power of attorney to receive the dividends due
thereon, and place them to her account in the bank of Marsh and Co.,
and that he always continued regularly to account to her for the
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amount of those dividends. That she never gave the said Henry
Fauntleroy any permission, by power of attorney or otherwise, to
dispose of the principal of the said stock; and that the signature,
« Frances Young,” to the power of attorney now produced, is not her
handwriting or proper signature.

Mr. Freshfield now produeed another power of attorney, for the
sale of 5000f, of other Three per Cent. Consols, purporting to be
sizned by Elizabeth Wharton Young, _

ames Tyson, clerk in the bank of Marsh and Co., deposed that his
name, as signed as attesting witness to this power of attorney, was not
in his handwriting, nor did he ever see Miss Young sign her name to
any document.

John Barber depesed, that in the year 1815 he was a clerk in the
banking-house of Marsh, Sibbald and Co., butwas now a victnaller in
Little Newport-street; that he recollects having been repeatedly asked
by Mr. Fauntleroy to sign his name to papers, which he did, without
knowing what they were ; that the name John Barber, attached asa
subscribing witness to the signature % Elizabeth Wharton Young,” he
believes to be his handwriting ; but he never did see Miss Young sign
this, er any other document, nor did he know that he was witnessing
any signature at the time.

Miss: Elizabeth Wharton Young, formerly of Hertford, now of
Chichester, in the county of Sussex, deposed, that in the month of
May, 1815, there was deposited in the Bank of Eng]anﬂ, in her name,
the sum of 53081 195, 3 per Cent. Consols, her property; that Henry
Fauntleroy, of Berners-street, banker, had from her a power of attorney,
to receive the interest, or dividends, on this sum, and place the amount
to her ecredit in the bank of Marsh and Co., where she had an account;
that the said Henry Fauntleroy did continue to account regularly with
her for the dividends on this stock; but that deponent never did give
the said Henry Fauntleroy, or any other person, authority to dispese
of the said stock; and that the sizgnature, ¢ Elizabeth Wharton Y oung,”
to the power of attorney now produced, was not the handwriting of
this deponent. )

This lady (who is the sister of the other Miss Young, a witness in
this case, and both, we understand, the sisters of Mrs. Fauntleroy) was
so deeply affected while in the office, that it was with difficulty she
could Ee supported fromn fainting. When both ladies were retiring, it
was managed by the gentleman who escorted them to and from the
office, that they E-hﬂl.ﬂ%eﬂﬂt have a view of the prisoner.

Samuel Lardner deposed that he was a elerk in the Three per Cent.
Transfer Consol Office in the Bank of England, and that it was his
duty to examine powers of attorney. Thatahmring examined the power
of attorney now produced, he recollects its having been brought to him
by a person who stated his name to be Fauntleroy, and that on the
application of this person, the 5308/ 19s. stock, mentioned therein,
was transferred from the name of Miss Young to that of William
Richardson, of the Stock Exchange, Gentleman. The witness was now
desired to look at the prisoner, and say if he wasthe person who made
that application. After viewing Mr. Fauntleroy’s perzon for some
minutes, the witness said he had no doubt it was the person.

Mr. Freshfield said, that for the present he did not mean to go any
farther on the part of the prosecution, and therefore should not cecupy
any longer the attention of the Magistrates.

r. Conant asked Mr. Broderick if he wished to ask any questions,
or make any observations, on the part of the prisoner?
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Mr. Broderick said he did not, in the present stage of the proceed-
ings, feel it his duty to do so, but he should wish the examination to
be deferred to as late a day as convenient,

Mr. Conant asked, what time he felt disposed to wish for ?

Mr. Broderick said a fortnight.

Mr. Conant said that it was not usnal to remand a prisoner except
from week to week.

Mr. Broderick said he should not wish the Magistrate to deviate
from his usual course,

The prisoner was then remanded until the following Friday, with
an understanding that it was not improbable but the examination
might be further deferred.

The prisoner was conveyed back again to the House of Correction,
by Plank, immediately after the closing of the office. The second ex-
amination lasted about an hour and a half.

1t is understood, that those members of his own family who came
forward on this painful occasion against the prisoner, did so with the
utmost reluctance, and that it was the wish of the prisoner himself, that
all of them who may have suffered by his proceedings should do so.

The Bank of England is determined not to be responsible to any
persons who held back from the prosecution.

The prisoner, in his confinement, was wonderfully at his ease ; he eat
and slept well, and his spirits were better than could be supposed in
his situation.

The only change that took place in his appearance, during this ex-
amination, was, when the Misses Young were called, and entered the
office—a sudden flush at that meoment pervaded his whole countenance,
but in a moment subsided.

MARLBOROUGH STREET.—(THIRD EXAMINATION.)

Mr. Fauntleroy took his station as before, leaning on and against the
bar, outside of it, and in front of the Bench; he leaned his left arm
on the bar, and on that hand he wore a light-coloured kid glove, and
held in it the glove of the right hand, which was, as before, placed
acrass his breast, holding his hat in it.

The prisoner appeared to have undergone a most extraordinary
change, in point of health and spirits, during the short time that has
elapsed since his last examination. Ile presented rather a ghastly
hue upon his countenance, and altogether exhibited the appearance
and expression of one who had lately suffered intense mental anguish.
His eyes seemed languid and heavy. He seemed, during the progress
of the examination, totally absorbed in thought, and almost uncon-
scious of what was going on. He never once changed his position, or
the direction of his face, which was towards the office-door, nor did
he for a moment look towards the Bench,

The Clerk then called Colonel Thomas Lyster, of Wezford, in Ire-
land, and at present of London, who deposed, that in the month of
December, 1819, he had the sum of 6644l 13s. 3d. standing in his
name, in the Bank of England, vested in the Four per Cent. Conso-
lidated Fund ; that he gave a power of attorney to the banking-house
of Messrs. Marsh, Stracey, Fauntleroy, and Graham, to receive the
dividends of the same, and place the amount to the credit of his
aceount in their house; that those dividends were regularly and punc-
tually so placed to his credit up to the present year. That deponent
has examined the power of attorney here produced, dated 10th De-



17

cember, 1816, purporting to be signed by him, and giving the pri-
soner (Henry Fauntleroy) authority to sell out or transfer 60004, of
the said Stock; that the name, Thomas Lyster, signed to the said
power of attorney, is not the proper signature of this deponent, nor
did he ever give the prisoner, or any other person, power or authority
to sell out or atherwise dispose of the said Stock; and deponent fur-
ther says, that he was out of the country in that year, and had not
been in England from the year 1816 until the year 1821, when he
returned from St. Helena. Colonel Lyster now said that he did not
know how he could, upon consideration, well swear that the Stock
was standing in his name, in the Bank, at all in 1819, for he did not
see it there, he was out of the country; all he could say was, that it
ought to have been there.

Mr. Conant asked the Colonel if he believed it to have been there
at the time ? ok

Colonel Lyster said he certainly did; and he also believed it to be
there still, until this * blow up ” took place; and then, on coming
over from Ireland to ascertain the fact, he found that the Stock had
vanished since the year 1819.

. The Colonel's deposition was then altered, from the positive assers
tion, to his belief.

Mr. Freshiield said that he would soon relieve Colonel Lyster from
any doubt on that head, by convincing him that the Stock did stand in
his name in the Bank in that year. :

Jediah Kerie, late of Laurie-place, Bath, but now of Montague-
square, Bloomsbury, in the county of Middlesex, deposed, that he
had examined the power of attorney now produced, for the transfer of
6000.. Four per é]enl;. Consols, purporting to be signed ¢ Thomas
Lyster,” and to which this deponent's name is attached as an attest-
m§ witness to the signature of Thomas Lyster; but that the name
“ Jediah Kerie,” so signed, is not the proper signature of this depo-
nent, or in his handwriting ; nor did he ever witness the signing of
any document by Colonel Lyster.

_ Mr. Freshfield said that the other name, as attesting witness to the
iljgnauu:e of what purported to be that of Colonel Lyster, was that of
1ss Elizabeth Fauntleroy, the sister of the prisoner ; but, for reasons
which must be obvious, he would decline calling that lady, but he
would call a witness that would answer the same purpose.

James Tyson deposed that he was a clerk in the banking-house of
Marsh and Co., in which the prisoner was a partner ; that he is well
aciu:alntelr] with the prisoner’s handwriting, and believes the name
“ Elizabeth Fauntleroy, spinster,” signed as an attesting witness to
the warrant of attorney now produced, to be in the handwriting of
the prisoner; and deponent further says, that the name * Henry
Fauntleroy,” and the demand to act written on the back of the said

ower of attorney, are also in the handwriting of the prisoner.

Georze Hutchinson deposed, that in the year 1819 he was a clerk
in the Four per Cent. Consols Transfer Office ; that it was his duty to
examine all warrants or puwers of attorney for the transfer of any
such stock ; that in the year 1819 there was standing in the Bank of
England, in the said Four per Cent. Consols, the sum cf 66441, 13s. 5d.
in the name of Thomas Lyster ; that in December of that year, the pri-
soner applied, with the power of attorney now produced, to have
60001 of the said stock transferred from the name of Thomas Lyster
into the names of Jacob Clements and Henry Neil, of the Stock Ex-

B
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change, Gentlemen, in two sums of 3000L eaeh : and that by the di-
rectiuns of the prisoner, and under such power of attorney, the stock
was 5o transferred.

Mr. Freshfield now said, that as far as the case of Col. Lyster, the
evidence was complete, and he should now proceed to that of Mr,
Griffith, A power of attorney was now produced, purporting to au-
thorize the prisoner to sell or transfer the sum of 5G0l. Long Annul-
ties, which stood in the Bank of England in the name of John Grif-
fiths, of Collins Bircomb, in Devonshire. _
~John Skelton deposed, that he is a clerk in the Long Annuity
Transfer Office, in the Bank of England ; that in the year 1823, there
was standing in that Stock, 5001 in the name of John Griffith ; that on
the 15th of June, 1823, he found in the instruction box of the office a
ticket, directing him to make out a transfer, and fill up a power of
attorney for transferring the said 500{. Stock. '

James Tyson deposed, that he had examined the power of attorney
now produced for the transfer of 500. Long Annuities, and believes
the signature ¢ Henry Fauntleroy,” and the demand to act upon the
back of the said power of attorney, to be in the handwriting of the
prisoner. : '

James Kirby deposed, that he was a clerk in the banking-house of
Marsh and Co, ; that he has examined the power of attorney now pro-
duced for the transfer of 500{, Long Annuities, dated the 14th of
June, 18323 ; and that the name * James Kirby,” sizned thereto as
an attesting witness to the signature of * John Griffith,” is not the
gmper signature or handwriting of this deponent; but deponent

elieves the same, as well as the demand to act upon the back of the
said EOWEI‘ of attorney, to be in the handwriting of the prisoner,
and deponent further believes the signature, John Griffith, attached to
the said power of attorney, to be also in the handwriting of the
prisoner. _

Charles Dawes Lownds deposed, that he wasa clerk in the Long An-
nuities Office, in the Bank of England, in the year 1823, dnd it was
part of his duty to witness transfers. On the 14th of June, in that
year, the prisoner applied with the power of attorney now produced, to
have the sum of 500/, transferred from the name of John Griffith into
that of Gilbert Burrington, Gentleman, of the Stock Exchange ; and by
the prisoner’s directions, the stock was so transferred.

This being the whole of the evidence intended to be produced on the
part of the prosecution, the witnesses were bound over to prosecute at
the next Sessions at the Old Bailey.

The prisoner was now about to be removed from the office, when
Mr. Forbes, one of the gentlemen conducting the prisoner’s defence,
said, that he would request the indulgence ufahaving the prisoner still
allowed to remain at the House of Correction until the general remo-
ving day ; not, Mr. Forbes, said, so much on the prisoner’s own ac-
count, as for the advantage of many of his friends, who had much
business of importance still unarranged with him, and also for the
more convenientaccess of the prisoner’s legal advisers; neither of which
objects could be so conveniently attained in Newgate. 3

After some short consultation, Mr. Conant said, that as he felt quite
assured of the safe custody of the prisoner where he was, he should,
for the reasons stated by Mr.Forbes, be suffered to remain there until
Thursday.

The prisoner was then removed from the office by Plank and West-
cott, and again taken wvp to Mr, Conant's drawing-room, where he
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remained until the erowd about the office was dispersed, and was then
conveyed back to the House of Correction in a hackney coach.

Contrary to his usual custom, he was very taciturn to the officers
while being conveyed to and from the office.

INDULGENCE ALLOWED TO MR. FAUNTLEROY IN PRISON.

Much having been said in some of the newspapers, about the state-
rooms in which this gentleman was confined, and as there are some in-
dividuals who seem to imagine that Mr. F, was allowed to enjoy more
comfiorts than any other u?ﬁlis fellow prisoners, we think it 1s but just
that we give a description of the room in which Mr. Fauntleroy was
accornmodated. The apartment is in the north wing of the prisen, up
two pair of stairs ; its dimensions are seven feet by ten only, and 1s
secured by a remarkably strong oak door; the only place through
which the light can enter is a small window, strongly barricadoed
with iron bars. The furniture of this ¢ state room,” consists of a
wooden table, two chairs, a stool, on which is placed a wash-hand
basin, and in one corner of the room is a stump bedstead, on which
he reposes at night. This is the apartment that has heen said to be
equal to any private gentleman's residence, and commanding a view of
Highgate and Hampstead hiils,

Ir. Vickery, the Governor of the House of Correction, in Cold-bath-
fields, came 1nto the office in great agitation, and requesied to see
Mr. Conant, the magistrate, who committed Mr. Fauntleroy. It
being Mr. Dyer's day of attendance, Mr. Conant was not in the office;
but as soon as he was apprised of Mr, V.’s visit, he granted him an
interview in his drawing-room.

Mr. Vickery stated te Mr. Conant, that he was greatly surprised,
upon taking up the Times newspaper, at sceing a most false and in-
vidions paragraph therein inserted, relative to the mode of treatment
of his prisoner, Mr. Fauntleroy. Mr. Vickery here handed the Ma-
gistrate the paper in question, and pointed vut the paragraph com-
plained of, of which the following is a copy —

“ We understand that some representations have been made to the
Magistrate who commitied Mr. Fauntleroy, from a quarter ii&ﬁllal],f
interested in seeing the ends of public justice duly fulfilled by his
trial, on the culpable remissness with which he is guarded. His pre-
sent place of confinement, unless some new order has recently been
issued on the subject, is the upper part of the house of the governor of
Cold-bath-fields prison, where his accommodations are as complete and
full of comfort as the dwelling-house of any private gentleman, It
would be invidious to' dwell on the distinction made in this respect
between Mr, Fauntleroy's case, and that of any other prisoner charged
with erimes of such deep enormity ; the safe custody of the person
being the chief point, as regards public justice, to which importance
should be attached. Mr, Fauntlercy, we understand, was visited by a
gentleman who wished to confer with him on some particulars con-
nected with the failure of the banking-house, of which he was a ere-
ditor ; and who, contrary to what has been stated, found no difficulty
in gaining admittance to the prisoner, He was much surprised, that
on being intreduced to the prisoner, so little caution was used, that he
was suflered, without requesting it, to remaiu alone with him for
several minutes. The disclosure of these facts in the manner first
stated, has led to an investigation into the affair, and stricter precau-
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tions, there is no doubt, are now- adopted. Mr, Fauntleroy is said to
have large sums of money in his possession.™

Mr. Vickery reiterated, that not one part of the paragraph was true.
Mr. Fauntleroy never resided in his (Mr. Vickery's) house; that he
had been ever since he was first brought into the prison confined in
the state rooms, which are at the extreme end of the prison, and at a
great distance from his (the governor's) habitation. That Mr. F.
wils Jlaced there by order of a committee of magistrates, and is the
usual place allotted for gentlemen in the situation of Mr. Fauntleroy,
and wEer& three other gentlemen are nuw confined, so that no distine-
tion whatever is made between him and any other prisoner, charged
with crimes of such enormity. The medical gentlemen of the prison
had reported Mr. ¥, as unwell, and that the nature of his complaint
required air. The report was laid before the commiitee, and the
gentlemen gave orders that he should be allowed to walk in the pri-
son garden at a certain time of the day, This privilege had been
also granted to other prisoners when they have been so reported. The
Erisﬂner is allowed whatever animal food he pleases, and generally

iz dinner consists of either a mutton chop, or a beefsteak, after
which he is allowed a pint of wine, which other prisoners are also
allowed. As to Mr. Fauntleroy having large sums of money about
him, that, too, is false, he having had only six pounds since he had
been in his (Vickery’s) custody. e considered that the writer of the
paragraph had stated those falsehoods with the intent that they should
prejudice the magistrates against him, for granting to Mr. F. these
comforts that were allowed to no other prisoner, as it would appear by
the statement.

Mr. Conant told Mr. Vickery that the Bank Directors had com-
municated with him on the mode of treatment in the case of Mr.
Fauntleroy, they having heard that he was allowed to reside in his
(Vickery’s) house; and he suspected from what quarter it emanated,
and had accused the gentleman with having reported such a state-
ment, he (Mr. Conant) expressing his conviction of its being false. It
had been, in some degree, denied.

Mr. Vickery said, he knew who the gentleman was, his name was
but he would tell that gentleman to his face, that it was
false, were he present,

Mr. Conant, advised Mr. Vickery to go to the Editor of the Times,
and to desire an unqualified contradiction of the paragraph ; and Mr.
Vickery left the office for that purpose.

REMOVAL TO NEWGATE.

It was appointed to remove Mr, Fauntleroy from the House of Cor-
rection, Cold-bath-fields, at four o’clock : but in consequence of a very
protracted visit to him by one of his lezal advisers, the removal did
not take place till a quarter past five. Precisely at that time, a hack-
ney coach drew up to the prison door, inside the court-yard. A small
trunk and a writing-desk belonging to the prisoner were immediately
!:,Iﬂ.(iﬂl] therein, and the prisoner himself instantly followed, with Mr.

ickery, the governor, on one side of him, and Brand, the turnkey, on
the other.

Just as the prisoner was about to step into the coach, he shook
hands very cordially with all the turnkeys about the door. He then
stepped into the coach with a quick step, and apparently in better
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spirits than on the day of his examination. e was instantly fol-
lowed by Mr. Vickery, the governor, and Brand and another turn-
key, named Christmas, The coach then drove off, and arrived at
Newgate about half-past five, when the prisoner was in due form
delivered by Mr. Vickery into the charge and custody of Mr,
Wontner, the governor of that prison, according to the commi-
ment. :
The following is an exact copy of the commitment :—

¢ Police Office, Marlborough-street,

“To the Keeper of his Majesty’s Gaol of Newgate,
or his Deputy.

# [Middlesex to wit.)—Receive into your custody the body of
Henry Fauntleroy, herewith sent you, brought before John Edward
Conant, Esq. one of his Majesty’s Justices of the Peace in and for the
said County, by Samuel Plank, and charzed before me, the said Jus-
tice, upon the cath of John Goodchild and others, with feloniously
uttering and publishing, as true, in the city of London, a certain false,
forged, and counterfeited letter of attorney, for the sale of 46,0001,
Reduced Three per Cent. Annuities in the Capital Stock of the Go-
vernor and Company of the Bank of England, well knowing the
same to be false, forged and counterfeited, with intent to defraud the

-said Governor and Company of the Bank of England, against the
peace of our Sovereign Lord the King, his crown, and dignity. Him,
therefore, safely keep in your custody until he shall be ¢ ischarged by
due course of law; and for so doing this shall be your sufficient
~warrant.—Given under my hand and seal the 21st of October, 1824,

(Signed) « J, E. CoNanrt.”

The room which Mr. Fauntleroy occupies in Newgate is carpeted,
and is furnished with tables, chairs, &c. Ie expressed himself
thankful for the arrangements which had been made for his reception.
Mr. Fauntleroy observed to Mr. Vickery that he had slept better
since he had been in the House of Correction than he had done for
the last ten years before. His bedding was that which is furnished
to all the prisoners. He every day sent for the chaplain of the pri-
'son, and conversed with him on religious topics, and frequently
read in the bible. e also occasionally read other works. His
manners, whilst he remained in the prison, were mild and aflable to
those with whom he came in contact ; and it has been remarked
that he never made use of a slang expression. The female whom
he had under his protection was in a state of the greatest affliction
after his removal. The prisoner, on his way to Cold-bath-fields
prison in the coach, after his examination on Tuesday at Marlbo-
rough-street Office, declared to the two officers who accompanied
him, that if he had ever so free and uninterrupted an opportunity
of making his escape, he would not do so to the injury of Mr.
Vickery, the governor, or Plank and the other officers who were

with him.
MARSH, STRACEY, AND GRAHAM'S COMMISSION. '
. The first meeting of ereditors under this Commission was held at

the Office in Basinghall-street. The room was crowded at a very
early hour, but little business of any importance occurred, as the time
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of the Commissioners was occupied by swearing the creditors te the
]}a';uut' of their debts., In the early part of the morning, Mr, Basil
ontagu, who attended as counsel for the pefitioning cremitf.ﬂrs, sub-
mitted that the separate creditors of those bankrupts could not be
allowed to prove their separate debts under this Commission, which
had been jointly issued against three partners of the house, without an
order from the Lord Chancellor. B

Mr. Commissioner Law asked if there might not be some difficulty
on account of the form of the Commission, which had only been
issued against three out of four partners? He also wished to know
whether there was any partnership existing between Marsh, Stracey
and Graham, independently of that in which they were concerned with
Mr, Fauntleroy ? _.

Mr. Gordon, the solicitor of the Commission, answered this ques-
tion in the negative ; and with respect to the form of the Commission
as being against three only, he produced a recent Act of Parliament,
by which the whole estate of a partner was rendered liable to the
claims of both joint and separate creditors. The Commissioners being
thus satisfied as to the form of the Cemmission, said they would per-
mit the separate creditors to prove their debts, with a view to an ulti-
mate dividend, but such creditors could not be allowed to vote in any
of the proceedings under the joint Commission. :

Mr. Wm, Seymour applied to Mr. Commissioner Stringer on behalf
of the Mary-la-bonne {,‘Iillarity School, to have the debts of that fund
proved. He stated, that the funds were nominally under the mavage-
ment of a body of trustees, the number of which, however, was fluctuat-
ing and indefinite, as whoever was a subscriber of two guineas was en-
titled to hold that office.,

Mr. Commissioner Stringer said, that he was afraid he could not at
present allow the debt, without the signature of all the trustees.

Mr. Wm. Seymour explained that, in fact, the trustees had nnthinﬁ
to do with the management of the funds, the whole of which devolve
upon him in the capacity of treasurer; and it rested with him to ap-
point two persons to draw from the bankers as might be required.
amount of the debt was 3221. 3s. 6d.

Mr. Commissioner Stringer remarked, that if Mr. Seymour was al-
lowed to prove, it would be the trustees who would receive.

Mr. Wm. Seymour could not allow this: the funds were to remain
in his hands as treasurer, and the ioss, whatever it might be, would fall
upon the Charity. :

The proof of the debt was rejected for the present.

Mr. Clark, manazing director of the European Life Assurance Office,
Chatham-place, Blackiriars, applied for leave to prove his debt; the
amount of which was about 47,0001, the whole of which, it was ex-
pected, was lying in Marsh and Co.’s bank in Exchequer bills.

Mr. Commissioner Law asked, if Mr. Clark was the only Director
of the Aszurance Company ? :

Mr. Clark replied in the negative, There was a large body of
Directors ; but he was duly authorised by them to sit in every case
that might occur; his sole signature to any policy or cheque was held
to be sufficient. e

Mr, Commissioner Law observed, that this would not be sufficient
authority in the present case. If there were a certain number of
names inserted in the Act of Incorporation as Directors, the Comi-
missioners would expect all those signatures, either in proof of the
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debt, or in a power of attorney, to empower Mr, Clark to’ prove the
debt.

The proof of this debt by Mr. Clark was therefore rejected. Tt
was stated publicly in the voom that Mr. Stracey, of the house of
Marsh, Stracey and Co., is one of the Directors of this Assurance
Office.

A gentleman applied to pfove a debt, part of which was formed of
money deposited in the hands of Mr, Fauntleroy for the purchase of
Exchequer Bills. '

Mr. Montague observed, that with respect to claims of Exchequer
Bills, he believed there would be another difficulty. There could be
no doubt that considerable sums of money had been received from
various individuals for the purpose of being employed in the purchase
of Exchenquer Bills, but the amount was not known, and he feared the
bills could not be produced. The question therefore would be, whether
money said thus to te obtained by Mr. Fauntleroy on false representa-
tions, such as the application of it to a special purpose, which purpose
was never fulfilled, or the money accounted for, could be allowed as a
debt?

Mr.Commissioner Law thought, thatif thebills had neverbeenactually
purchased, the money deposited in the Bank for that purpose, was, in
effect, money had and received by the house to the use of the creditor,
and could be proved as such under the Commission. The Learned
Commissioner turned to the chief clerk of Messrs, Marsh and Stracey’s
house, and asked whether it appeared from the books that these Ex-
chequer Bills had been actually purchased or not?

The Clerk replied, that they appeared to have been purchased. He
was then asked whether there was any memorandum by which they
appeared to have been afterwards sold, or otherwise disposed of ? and
he answered in the negative.

Mr. Commissioner Law said, he should advise the creditor to prove
only for so much of his demand as arose out of his cash concerns at
the Bank, and to leave the rest unproved for the present. Ifthe bills
had not been purchased, he could afterwards claim the money he had
advanced for them as a debt against the house; but if they had been
purchased, and were still in existence, he would be in a much better
situation, as, instead of taking a dividend upon them, he could claim
the bills themselves.

Mr. Montagu said, there was another question in this case, which
was, whether, supposing the money to have been advanced to Mr.
Fauntleroy, and never accounted for, it would not resclve itself into a
felgn;r, fnd_leave the person advancing without any remedy as a civil
debtor? ;

Mr. Commissioner Law thought that as the meney had been ad-
vanced on a special and particular authority, the felony was destroyed,
and the offence was converted into an embezzlement. Such would be
the case if the bills had not been purchased, but if it should turn out
that they had, and were still in actual existence, the creditor would be
entitled to them. _ _

Mr. Ayres, the provisional assignee, then entered the room, and
produced a paper which purported to be a sketch of the present state of
the banking-house.

Parts of this paper were read, the whole of which we insert below ;
it was, however, at this time ohjected to on the part of the Commis-
sioners, as a paper, for the correctness of which they could not vonch.

On a question from Mr, Com missioner Law, Mr, Ayres stated that

N

!
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the whole account was exclusive of any fraudulent transactions that
there might be relative to India Bonds, or of any fraudulent transac-
tions whatever, with the exception of the sum of 95,000.. which had
already been demanded by creditors under the head of Exchequer Bills,
Mr. Ayres, in addition, stated that the account was not so full and ex-

Elanntur;.r as he could have wished, owing to the Bank of England

eing indisposed to furnish any account whatever; this left the busi-
ness, with respect to that point, in a very vague and confused state.

Mr. Law asked if the Bank of England held itself responsible for
the frauds that might have been committed ?

Mr. Ayres expressed his inability to answer this question—the
frauds c:ommiltmr were of two or three sorts ; he believed they were
liable for some and not for others.

-+ On a question about the Exchequer Bills, Mr. Commissioner Law
was handed a letter, which had been that morning received from Mr.
Fauntleroy (who, it was stated, ap'eemcd willing to render every infor-
mation); it was directed to Mr. Gordon, Broad-street.  After reading
it, Mr. Commissioner Law said, that he did not think it proper that
the letter should be made public ; the declaration of Mr. Fauntleroy
would be of no effect to the present Commission, and might prove
prejudicial to bimself on some future occasion. Ile considered the
present Commission in the light of any other Commission of Bank-
ruptey, and in which the Commissioners neither oppose themselves to,
nor assist the publicity of, any of the circumstances. ;

Several of the creditors here expressed a wish that the paper pro-

uced by Mr. Ayres should be read aloud pro bono publico. :

The paper was accordingly handed to Mr. Montagu for that purpose,
when Mr. Commissioner Law said, that he thought it necessary to
state, on the part of the Commissioners, that Ihey?md nothing to do
with the account therein stated ; and that, therefore, to prevent their
at all appearing in the business, he declared the Meeting then broken
up. The creditors, however, were at liberty to have a Meeting among
themselves, at which the paper might be read to them. _ .

The main body of the l.':l'E(EtﬂrB then retired to the further end of the
room, and an Agent of the name of Wood got on a table, and read the
paper in question to them, of which the following is a copy :—

A SKETCH OF THE C{]NCERNE‘; OF THE HOUSE OF MARSH,
STRACEY, AND GRAHAM, BERNERS-STREET.

To amount of Debts expected to be proved against the
Estate . . . . g : eyl s gify . £366,988
To amount of Exchequer Bills and India Bonds claimed by .
different individuals, as having been deposited with the
House, but which are not to be found, and supposed to be
abstracted . ¢ § i . s . . . 95,000

£461,088

Awmount of Cash and Bills in band . : s auld - 2155000
Amount of Debts due to the House on Bonds and other effi-

cient Securities g : ; : y : . . 116,970
Amount of Debts due to the Firm for Overdrawn Accounts:

and Sums advanced on Loan, for a. considerable part of

which mortgage and other descriptions of securities are

belil 157 i il 2 g il o 1 wmsegithi ey wivdl Aolbee 127 20922



25

Interest due to a considerable extent on many of the above

Debts, which has not yet been calculated. . . Uncertain
544,193

Mr. Commissioner Law protested against this paper being put forth
as sanctioned by the Commissioners under the bankruptey. 1If he
understood its purport aright, it stated that the very heart of the claims
then known to the house amounted to 461,988l., and the highest
amount of the assets to be 544,1931., exelusive of the uncalculated in-
terest on a considerable part of that sum.

In the course of the day two gentlemen, one of whom was Mr,
Thelwall, applied to the Commissioners to know if some plate which
they had deposited in the banking-liouse, in sealed boxes, might not
be delivered up to them by the messenger who had seized it under the
commission? They both stated themselves to be creditors of the
huus.? on a cash balance, one of them having a claim to the amount of
40001.

Mr. Commissioner Law said, the messenger would not be justified
in deiivering up the plate without an order from the Lord Chancellor,
which could only be obtained upon an affidavit of the circumstances,
or without the consent of the provisional assignee, and a written in-
demnity being given by the party. The gentlemen complained very
much of the hardship of the case, and then withdrew, in order to make
an application to the provisional assignee on the suhject.

SECOND MEETING.

Pursuant to aavertisement, the Commissioners sat at the Bank-
rupt Court, to receive proofs of debts from the different ereditors.
Long before the hour appuinted for the sitting, the room was
filled by the creditors. They consisted of ladies (widows) and
tradesmen, principally, with some of the more pretending order in so-
ciety. Throughout the features of all there appearedan intense anxiety,
which was not a little aggravated by the total want of punctuality on
the part of the Commissioners. Before the Commissioners made their
appearance, the clerks were employed in filling up the depositions of the
different creditors, who had not already fulfilled that ceremony at the
office of the solicitor to the Commission.

At half-past five o’clock, the Commissioners took their seats, and as
soon as their approach was announced, there was a general rush to the
table. Five Commissioners were employed simultuneously in admi-
nistering the oaths to the creditors. The debts proved on this occasion
were principally of an amount between 8001 and 1200f.  There were
several debts between 1004, and 200.. The confusion which prevailed
after the business hcﬁan begears all deseription.  The ladies, of course,
expected to be waited on first ; but they had to contend against some
swurdy competitors for priority : some had their horses at the door,some
again looked at their watches, and watched with agitation the progress
of the hour to the moment when some suburban coach was about to
start. Occasionally there was a cautious, agitated old gentleman, seen
pacing the unfrequented part of the room, moralising on the unsub-
stantial nature of human prosperity. On the whole, though nothing
official transpired, there appeared tv be a general persuasion amongst
the creditors, that things were not so favourable as they were at first
led to believe. This opinion was not a little confirmed by the deport-
ment of one of the Commissioners (of celebrated philanthropy), who,



26

whenever a creditor presented himself to swear to his deposition, took
occasion to commiserate with him—** Ah, you here! Tam sorry to see
you, indeed.” The debts were almost of a nature to require no exa-
mination on the part of the Commissioners. We must except, how-
ever, three ur four instances, where creditors attempted to mix up the
debts contracted by Mr, Fauntleroy with their claims on the firm.
These attempts were resisted, of course, on the part of the Commis-
sioners. One individual complained loudly of the injustice done him,
by the refusal of the Commissioners to admit the proot of a considerable
sum for an equipage of a very costly description, He represented, that
the articles which he provided were such as the partper of a banking-
house, of the extensive nature to which Mr. F. belonged, ought to pos-
sess ; and, inshort, that they were necessaries, and ought to be charged
to the partnership account, as much as the stationery used in the bank,
or the house itself. Iowever, vpon this point the Commissioners
were iofexible ; and the indignant creditor was teld be had no other
;’esuurc[: but to levy his demand on the personal estate of Mr. Faunt-
EToY.

THIRD MEETING.

At this meeting there was, if’ possible, more confusion than on the
former, arising out of the anxiety evinced by parties to prove, and to
enable them to vote for assignees, the choice of whom was fixed for
this day. At the opposite end of the room to that at which the Com-
missioners presided, was a table upon which two lists of parties, to act
in the capacity of assignees, were placed, for the signature of the cre-
ditors as svon as they had proved.

From the irregularity which reigned throughout the morning, in
consequence of the number of persons collected in the room, we
were unable to gather more of the proceedings than the few cases
following :

A proof was taken from Masterman and Co., for 20,3120 15s. 1d.
upon an assignment to the firm, for an individual as a balance of a
banking account.

The Secretary to the Stratford Club applied to prove upen 15004, in
India Bonds, and about 500/. the balance of cash in the house at the
time of the bankrutey, The firm had never received authority to dis-
pose of the bonds.

Mr, Law—DMr. Hare (who is the provisional assignee), are you aware
of the bonds having been in existence ?

Mr. Hare—I have no doubt of the existence of the bonds, but they
are not forthcoming,

Mr, Law (to the Secretary)—Are you a member of the club, Sir?

Secretary—No, Sir, 1 am not,

Mr. Law—Then, Sir, you cannot prove.

A Gentleman, the drawer of a bill, applied under the following cir-
cumstances :—He stated that he had lodged in the bankrupts” hands a
bill of exchange drawn by himself previous to the issuing of the com-
mission ; the bill bad become due since the bankruptey, and had been
dishonoured. His application was to know whether he must prove
for the balance at the time of the bankruptey (viz. 1351.), or whether
he must deduct the amount of the bill, 50/, 7

The Conimissioners decided that the 50f. must be considered as a
set-off by the firm, and the amountto be proved must be the balance
when the 50/, is deducted, :
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A Gentleman had senta bill of exehange to the hankers to receive
the amount as agents when due; the bill was due on the Monday
afier the parties appeared in the Gazelte, and the money was received
by them. He now applied to know whether he was not entitled to the
full amount of the proceeds of that bill,

Mr. Law said he certainly was entitled to the whole under those cir-
chnmstances, ,

Upon question being put to the provisional assignee (Mr, Hare), he
said, that since the last meeting there hald been an increase of elaim
0{: about 20,0001 ; but, notwithstanding that, there was still an excess
ol assets,

The two lists for the choice of the creditors, were, one—Messrs. Bol-
lard, Hare; and Kmight; the other, Messrs. Bollard, Hare, Lewis,
Bushnell and Hutchins. : The choice, we understand, fell on the first
list ; but in consequence of some oppoesition having been made by Mr,
Goren, of the firm of Goren and Price, solicitors, in Orchard-street,
Portman-square, whe attended not only for several of the ereditors,
but for himself, upon the ground of undue influence havmg been used
for the purpose of insuring the election of the list, consisting of three
Gentlemnen, the Commissioners proceeded to a scrutiny.

The final examination under the Commission to prove debts, being
announced in the Gazette for nine o'clock on Saturday morning, Uct,
50,, at the Commissioners’ Court, Basinghall-street, the creditors to
the estate attended in great numbers. i

Several depositions (in addition to those already admitted) in proof
ofidebt were put in; the gross amount proved was, however, by no
means so considerable as had been anticipated.

Very great anxiety seemed to prevail amongst the holders of cheques
on the house, to know what decision had been come to respecting
their claims. = This, however, was set at rest by a communication
from Mr, Montagu, intimating that they would be admitted in proof,
though not now, as the precise form in which they should be put in
was not yet agreed on; but the cheque holders would have notice of
the deeision through the medium of public advertisement in the news-

ers. . This reply gave very general satisfaction.

- Atabout half-past ten o'clock Mr, Montagu addressed the Court,
and said, “ I hold in my hand an order, signed by the Lord Chancellor,
for suspending this examination, in the case of the bankrupts, Messrs,
Marsh, Stracey, and Graham, for forty-nine days from this gay, so that
more ample opportunity will be given for the investigating the affairs
of the house.”—Though this enlargement may be treated as mere
matter of course, and though no specific grounds were mentioned in
the order, yet it is quite clear that there could be no thorough or sa-
tisfactory investigation of the bankrupts’ affairs until the fate of one
of the partners (and he, too, the acting partuer) be definitively settled,
He, of course, could give much important information ; but at present,
considering the delicacy of his own situation, it would be not only
indecorous, but contrary to rule, to press him on a subject which
might possibly affect himself. Besides the presence of the other
parmers was looked for, when this day was named for the examination,
and their compulsory attendance in another Court of course precluded
the possibility of their appearance here,

Like most other circumstances of -a public nature in the metropolis,
every hole and corner has been ransacked to procure anecdotes to fur-
nish the colummns of the numerous journals. The following have been
selected as the most authentic :— s
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The various sums in stocks sold out under forged powers of attorney
were generally entrusted by Mr. Fauntleroy to his partner, Mr. Graham,
for disposal, as he was the one of the firm who most frequently
attended to the business of the house in the city during the day. Mr,
Graham, who had no sort of suspicion as to the nature of the instru-
ments upon which he was acting, usually, according to the directions he
received, sold out from the names of the trustees, and purchased in the
name of Mr, Fauntleroy alone, or transferred from the one to the
other. The stock being thus at Mr. Fauntleroy’s own disposal, he
himself sold out at his pleasure. The first instrument of this nature
alleged to be found is, we understand, dated as far back as 1808 : this
was of course made use of, and the stock sold out under it, many years
before Mr. Graham joined the firm ; so that he could not have been
made an instrument of on that oceasion. Indeed, we believe, about that
period, or soon after, Mr. Graham, who is 4 Colonel in the army, was
employed on military service in the Peninsula, where, for several years,
to the end of the campaizn, he continued to serve under the Duke of
Wellington, who has often spoken in the highest terms of his gallantry.
On one storming enterprise, a sort of forlorn hope, he was the only
surviving officer out of nine who entered uponi it: he has been severely
and repeatedly wounded in various parts of his body. 'Mr. Graham
feels the ruin bronght upon himas'a peculiar hardship, as a partoer in
this banking-house, because the greater part, or at least a great portion,
of Mr. F.’s practice had been carried on, as appears by the dates, long
before Mr. Graham ever became a partner. ' :

Mr, Fauntleroy, we understand, was admitted a partner into the
house of Marsh and Co. more out of respect and compliment to his
father after his death, who had been one of the original members of
the firm, than on account of any property which he himself could bring
into the establishment. His accurate knowledge of business, and the
great facility with which he despatched and arranged accounts, soon
made him an acquisition ; and for some years l];ast he has been almost
the sole acting-manager of the business of the house. . Mr. Marsh was
a very elderly gentleman, we believe little short of eighty years of age,
and could not of course attend much to business. Mr. Stracey spent
the greater portion of his time enjoying the pleasures of the country,
Mr. Graham, from the nature of his professional military life, a con-
siderable portion of which was passed in the Peninsula, and the short
time he has been in the concern, could not be expected to know much
of banking or any other business. So that Mr. Fauntleroy may be con-
sidered as the firm himself in point of activity ; and as faras capability
to manage such an establishment, we understand there is not m Lon-
don a man more worthy of such a trust; indeed, we have the autho-
rity of a very old and experienced banker for saying, that there is not
in the whole metropolis one man that he would select in preference to
Mr Henry Fauntleroy, for a perfect acquaintance with, and knowledge
of, the banking business. e was acquainted minutely with every
description of public securities, both foreign and domestic: and could,
in an instant, tell their respective and relative values,

Mr. Fauntleroy has, we understand, only one brother and one sister:
the former is a highly respected and respectable professional gentle-
man. The anguish of the family at the dreadful situation of their re-
lative is beyond description.

We have the following remarkable anecdote respecting this un-
fortunate person from a quarter on which we can rely :—It 1s now
about twenty vears since a young officer applied to the bank of
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Messrs. Marsk, Stracey, and Co. and presented a bill for 600 to be
discounted. Many respectable names appeared as parties to the bill,
amongst which was the name of a late Nuble Earl of the sister king-
dom, Lord K——; Mr. Fauntleroy, sceing so respectable a signature
attached to it, advanced G0l upon it, which was the sum asked
for by the applicant. Subsequently it appeared that the bill had
been forged E}j a young gentleman of respectable connexions, who
had got an appointment to a regiment, but who would have lost it for
want of means to procure an outfit, and, in the exizency of the mo-
ment, had recourse to this desperate expedient. Mr. Fauntleroy pro-
secuted the investigation of the matter, and detected the culprit, who
had been enabled, ﬁj means of the supply which his guilty conduct had
rocured for him, to join his regiment. The noble Lord whose name
ad been forged, of course heard of the transaction ; he inquired into
the circumstances of the young man, and finding that he had up to
that time borne a spotless reputation, rescued him from the penalty
of the law, by paying the amount which Mr. Fauntleroy had ad-
vanced ; and it is but justice to Mr. Fauntleroy to add, that through-
out the transaction he evineed an earnest desire to co-operate with the
Naoble Peer in his errcnecus, but scarcely reprehensible, benevalence.
towards this unfortunate oificer. The name of the young man re-
mains, we believe, a secret locked up in the breast of Mr. Fauntleroy,
as Lord K—— is since dead, and, as might be supposed, never re-
vealed it. He subsequently, we learn, became, and is now, a Field
Officer, and the propriety of his conduct has proved him not unwor-

thy of the compassion and forgiveness which had been extended to.
him.”

MRS, HENRY FAUNTLEROY,

The unjust calumnies and unfounded assertions which have been
circulated respecting this unfortunate lady, have induced a particular
friend of her family to lay before the public the following statement
of facts :—She is the daughter of the late Captain John Young, R, N.,
who for many years served his country with distinguished bravery and
honour ; and an intimacy having long subsisted between his family
and that of the Fauntleroy’s, after his death, Mr, H, Fauntleroy suc-
ceeded in gaining the affectivns of Miss Young, and a private mar-
riage took place. When her brother discovered the error she had
been drawn into, he instantly demanded of Mr. Fauntleroy to ac-
knowledge her publicly as his wife, which he readily consented to do.
but begged a short time might be allowed him for the arrangement of
his affairs previous to the acknowledgment: during the interval which
oceurred, his immoralities beinz discovered, Mrs. H. Fauntlerov's
family thought it advisable for Ther to separate from a man of such
dissolute habits ; and she has ever since lived under the protection of
her mother. The propriety of her conduct is the best testimony that
can be oftered of her moral rectitude and virtue, and must in the end
defeat the efforts of malevolence and scandal.

An article appeared in most of the London papers, relative to Mr.
Fauntleroy, containing a long detail of alleged acts of profligacy, which
struck us at the time as bearing evident marks of exageeration. We
have since made inquiries on the subject, and are now enabled positively
to contradict many of the statements; and, knowing the accuracy of
the source from which we derive our information, we shall pledge our-
selves for the truth of what we state, It is generally believed that Mr.
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Fauntleroy has been a victim to, among other things, the vice of gam-
Lling; this is as groundless as the ramour which we lately contradicted
of his having been involved in difficulties by building speculations in
Brighton. Billiards was almost the only game that he was in the
habit of playing, and at this he never hazarded more than a shilling,
nor at his own table would he suffer others to do so, it being with him
a pride to say that a larger sum was never lost in-his house. At whist
he also occasionally played, but he was seldom known to exceed
crown, and never guinea points ; nor can we learn that he was in the
habit of playing at any other game. Much has been said of Mr.
Fauntleroy’s intimacy with Mrs. Bertram, alias *“Mother Bang,” who,
by the bye, is 2 Brighton woman, and well known here by the name of
Kent. We know that he has not seen her for a period of several years.
I't was also said, that Mr. Fauntleroy frequently visited the continent,
and spake fluently several foreign languages. Oun the contrary, he was
never out of England for more than a few hours, and spoke no living
language but his own.  What is said of his intimate acquaintance with
banking business is perfectly correct, his wife (from whom it is, we
believe, also true that he separated on quitting the church after the
nuptial ceremony) has resided at Tunbridge Wells, occasionally
visiting Brightonand other watering places, but never going to London.

The establishment of Mr. Fauntleroy in Surrey was by no means on
s0 extensive a scale as has been represented, the house being really a
small one; noris it true that he had any establishment at the west
end of the town, as has been stated, or indeed any other place except
Brighton ; the one referred to was in the suburbs of London, in the
neighbourhood of Lambeth or Vauxhall, and so little was it known,
that the peace officers had considerable difficulty in finding it. It is
also untrue that the female who resided there was brought by Mr,
Fauntleroy to this country from Paris ; although she was educated in
France, she is an Englishwouman, and her name was Miss F
but she afterwards assumed the name of Mrs, F————,  She occa-
sionally visited Brizhton, but when she did so, she oceupied a separate
house or lodgings. It has been reported that Mr, Fauntleroy was in the
habit of bringing females of a certain description to his residence here ;
thisis pot the case, nor is it, we believe, true that Mrs, K—— ., a
lady well known in Brighton, and who is now living here in great style,
was formerly under his l;rutectiun, although he was acquainted with
her. Mr, Fauntleroy, when at Brighton, lived in a very quiet way,
as we learn from those who have dined with him, his dinners being as
remarkable for their plainness as his wines were for their excellence ;
he kept no plate in the house, bringing it with him from London:
and his establishment consisted only of a zardener, and, we believe,
two female servants. In addition to what has been said above, Mr.
Fauntleroy never entered a gambling-house in his life.

Such is the information we have cellected from peculiar and private
sources ; and the result only serves to, involve the case in still greater
mystery than befure.

As the name of Mother Bung has often been introduced as one of
the persons who assisted in the dissipation of vast sums belonging to
Mr. Fauntleroy, the following letters may tend to throw some light
upon that circumstance :

Sin,—1I need not tell you that, “what is sauce for the goose is also
sauce for the gander,” which old English vulgar saying may be proper-
Jy applied to the present disgusting subject; as to the propriety or 1m-
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spriety of publishing any thing criminatory or otherwise, regardin
LEIIE?U:{ m?‘]:is acq_ugintgnnes ;Ehul: as near{y the whole of tl'lge Luné-:
1journals have insinuated that Fauntleroy has been made the dupe
others, but none of his cronies have been named, excepting the un-
tunate female, M. A. Kent, alias Mrs. Bertram, whose name, with
manly and unnatural feeling, was placarded by one of the Sunday
pers belonging to Mr, C, of the M C , which [l)a-.
¢ has had the assurance to commence, for the sake of lucre, a false
count of the life of the unfortunate woman in question, whose first
d greatest misfortune was, her being born of poor parents, and witha
-wer share of personal attractions than generally possessed by her sex;
Eﬁfmm whom I have received the accompanying letter, which, con-
rmably to the wish of the poor woman, I send to you to use as you
ink proper.—I will not at present make any other comment on the
tter, than to say that I believe it 'gives a true account of what took
ace prior to the death of the unforwnate Charles Bradburn, although
differs widely from the account given to me by Mr. Fauntleroy him-
:If, of the part which he acted in the last scene of the tragedy : for he
tid that he was actually in bed with the unfortunate woman when La-
ender took him into custody, prior to which, he had often spoken to
1e in the highest praise of Mrs, Bertram’s charms, &c., and wished
ery much to introduce me to her acquaintance, which I always de-

lined. :
I remain your's most obedient,
October 22, 1824, J. W. PaRrkInNs.

—_—————

Copy of a letter from Mary Ann Kent, alias Mrs. Bertram, to J, W,
Parkins, Esq.

« Sip,—It rejoiced me to meet you, as I did by accident in the Park
this day week, us I wanted to see you very much. Although I had
often heard of you, I had never seen you for the last six years, when
you drove me and a party in your barouche to Doncaster race-course,
at which time you said you were travelling down to the North, in pur-
suit of your servant who bad robbed you. Since then, [ have had many
ups and downs in the world ; but never any thing hit me so foul a blow
as what has appeared in the newspapers since your friend Fauntleroy's
apprehension, particularly in a hlfackguard Sunday paper, called t:{le
Yaife in London.

I now request you, as a lover of truth, and a friend to every one,
even the greatest strangers, when they are wronged, to do me justice,
as no one has been more belied than my untortunate self, as you
know, particularly as regards my acquaintance with Fauntleroy,
which commenced by his calling on me, to pay his compliments, as
many a better man has done—aye, even the first man in the kingdom,
Fauntleroy never was a favourite of mine, on the centrary: and had I
known him what he has turned out to be, he never should have
entered my,doors ; which, perhaps, he may have done twenty times in
his life, and that always in a sneaking shabby way by himself;
although he often spoke of you, and promized to mtroduce you to me,
when you first arrived from India, but he never did. Instead of
Fauntleroy being extravagant, he behaved very zhabby to me: and
called many times without leaving me sixpence, and used to make it
up by giving me a drive down to his cottage at Hampton, on the
Saturday night, and to come back on the Monday morning, But I

never saw either young Ilats or old Sharps at his house, or any gam-
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bling whatever, and only met the same party—three or four men who
seemed to be his old acquaintances—a Mr. R——d, a Mr. V—n,
and a Mr. B—n, and another or two of the same sort of stale pen
and ink fellows, whose names I cannot now recollect. I never in my
life was in the keeping of Fauntleroy ; nor did I ever keepa house or
lodge in Parliament-street ; and the last time in my life, that I saw
Fauntleroy, was a day or two after the death of my unfortunate friend
Bradburn, six years ago; and then Fauntleroy happened to call upon
me, as you or any other gentleman night have done, and he bad not
been long in the room when Jack Lavender called upon me, about
eight o'clock in the evening, and said that he bad gota warrant for
me, (which was a lie,) to take me to Queeu-sciluare Police Office, and
that I must go with him, Onmy leaving my house with Lavender in
a coach, Fauntleroy gave meatrifle of money to bear my expenses, and
said he would write to his friend, Mr. Plastow, magistrate at Queen's-
uare police, in my behalf. Lavender took me to his own house,
where he kept me all night, trving to get me to say that the dice
which the vagabonds had made use of in playing with my dear friend
Bradburn, were [oaded; as they did also the next day at Queen-
square, and they made me sign some paper, the particulars of which I
do not recollect ; but I declare to you and God, that I am quite inno-
cent of any thing against my dearest and lest friend Bradburn, who
allowed me 400l a year, which I lost by his death, and at which time I
was with child by him ; and as the truth of that story was never fairly
told, T will tell you all about it, although it hurts me to recollect it.
On the evening in question, I was invited by Andrews, who gave me a
ticket 1o go to the masquerade at the Argyll-rooms along with him and
Mrs, Darnley. When we arrived there, we met poor Charles Brad-
burn and his brother Frederick Bradburn, with their friend Charles
Dowding. They then asked me to join their party, which we did ; and
after taking a few glasses of wine, and spendin%:ehe evening very agree-
ably, C. Bradburn said he knew where to get a hetter bottle of wine, for
that which we were drinking was, he said, d——d bad stufi; accordingly
we all agreed to go home to my house to take a bottle of Champagne,
when Captain Wallace, who was a friend of Andrews, came up to An-
drews, and said, * Where are you going?” Andrews rﬂplieg, “ We
are going to Crawford-street; will you come?” whereupon he got in-
to the coach with us. The party sat down to drink, and became very
cheerful, and some of them proposed te toss for a dozen of Cham-
pagne, or silk stockings, as a present to myself, which I believe Wal-
jace lost. I had the wine in my house, which was accordingly brought
up, and Andrews then asked if I had a backgammon board; 1 told him
no, nor had I ever such a thing. Ie then sent my footman for dice
and a backgammon board to Long's. Wallace, Andrews, and the two
Bradburns, and Dowding, sat round the table, to play ; and I, having

drank rather freely of the Chumpagne, had become rather drowsy, an
1 layed down on the couch to sleep, some time after which, I was awoke
by a dispute between Wallace and my friend Bradburn, about a check
for two hundred pounds for money lost, which Wallace said was no
ayment, and threw it into the fire ; on which Charles Dowding and
f"rﬂllm-ick Bradburn said, “ Do you mean to insult Mr. C. Bradburn,
by saying his check is not good for 2004 1" and swore, that his check
and word were good for as many thousands, They afterwards got to
very high words, on which, I said I would allow of no playing in my
house; but 1 could not, unfortunately, prevail upon them to leave off.
They were all so bent upon it, that they joined in making me drink
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more Champagne, and I became quite tipsy, and knew nothing more
of what had been done until the next morning. when Bradburn waked
me, and said, that he was in very great trouble, as he had lost with
Andrews and Wallace upwards of 1800/, and if it cameto his partuer's
ears, it would be the ruin of him. I teld him he was a fool if he paid
thema farthing; and thatif Wallace and Andrews had lost so much te
him, they had not so many farthings to pay it. He said it was too
late, for he had given them his check for 350L, and his promise to pay
the remainder ; on which I begged him to get out of bed, and go to the
bankers and stop the payment of the check. On his return Eack, he
informed me they haR already been there and got the money, at which
he seemed very much distressed, as he understood that Andrews and
Waliace, along with a female of the name of Walker, of Crawford-
street, had been to his residence in the city, to make him pay the re-
mainder. 1 advised him above all things not to pay the muney ; and
it was agreed that he and I should go out of town the nzxt morning.
Charles Bradburn, his brother Frederick, and Mr. C. Dowding, dined
with me that day, and Mr. Charles Bradburn left me to prepare his
tilbury, and that we were to leave town the following morning ; but
he, poor fellow, never returned, and wrote me a note to say that
something prevented him. The first account I had of my dear friend
Bradburn, was, that he had gone up stairs and found a brace of pistols
at his residence, one of which had heen loaded for many years, and
with which he blew his brains out. This intellizence, of the death of
my friend, and the father of my child, I had from Jack Lavender; and
at the time, Fauntleroy was sitting with me on the couch, which in-
tellizence grieved me so much, that it made me miscarry. The above
1s a true statement of the real facts, to which I sign my name, and of’
which you may make what use you think lirﬂper, in vindication of my
character, which I am sure you will, as I have heard you say, that
the “ devil shall not be made blacker than what he deserves,” if you.
can help it; and I remain, Sir—Yours very respectfully,
(Signed) “ Manv-Axn KexnT,
or if you please,
¢ Marny-ANN BErTRAM,"”

“P.S. You must excuse me giving my address, as I have ever
since I left Crawford-street, retired from public life,”

The following letters are inserted merely to shew the distressed sta‘e
of the firm of Messrs. Marsh, Stracey and Co. :—

To the Editor of the Sunday Times,

Sin—Mr. Fauntleroy, or his partners, by his directions, having
thought proper to supply Harmer, Fauntleroy’s Old Bailey attorney,
with several of my private papers and documents, more particularly a
check of mine for 6000, drawn upon the firm of Marsh, Stracey,
Fauntleroy and Graham, in favour of the Rev. Edward Finch, which
check he, Fauntleroy, and his partners denied having in their posses-
sion on the 2d June last, as you may perceive hy their Notes, No. 1
and 2, which I herewith send, with other copies of correspondence and
original letters, as they will throw a light on the extraordinary conduct
of those bankers, of whom I had the highest opinion until my suspicion
was excited in the beginning of 1818, when I was informed by a gen-
tleman from the Bank of Eneland, that the firm of Marsh, Stracey and
Co., could not, on their united responsibility, raise 15,0004.! This re-

C
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port would not have ‘been credited by me had not Fauntleroy, a con-
siderable time prier to this, applied to me to place a few thousands in
their hands at interest, which 1 did to a considerable amount; and
which, with other suspicious circumstances too numerous at present
to enumerate, induced me te demand, promptly, my Exchequer Bills,
25,000L., left to be taken care of by them, which demand on Fauntle-
roy created considerable difficulty and embarrassiment. However, I
fortunately obtained the amount of the Exchequer Bills, and a con-
siderable sum in cash, leaving my account unsettled, which was never
balanced up; nor have the checks or vouchers for the last 10,0004, de-
bited in my pass-book, been delivered to e to this day, although I
have applied for them for the last six months, if’ only to satisfy myself
that the checks are genuine, and not forgeries, on which the money is
said 10 have been paid.

I also send you copies of a curious correspondence between Fauntle-
roy and Grabam and an honest tradesman, who has sent it to me, and
who (by the failure of the bank in Berners-street, and the threat of
being arrested at the suit of Fauntleroy, although himself confined in
prison for fraud and forgery) has been .cumpeﬁﬂd to apply to me for

ecuniary assistance, The gross mismanagement of, ancF neglectin, a

ate prosecution which 1 was advised by counsel to institute against
one George Hicks, the Rev. Edward Finch, and Thomas Acton Wol-
laston, for obtaining from me the 6000L under false pretences, and
whose letters of recrimination and accusation against each other were
in Court, but not produced, have rendered this exposure necessary in
my own defence; which transaction, Harmer (the attorney) has im-
pudently perverted, in a notorious Sunday Paper of which he is the
prineipal proprietor: but I hope there is still some redress to be ob-
tained for, Sir, your very ocbedient servant,

No. 9, Essex-strect, Strand, J. W. PagrgIns,

ath Oct. 1824,

As .the Correspondence which Mr. Parkins has sent us (alluded to
in the above letter) would form a quarto velume, it cannot be supposed
that we can make more than a partial extract from it. From the te-
nour of the whole, however, itis evident that Mr. Parkins had placed a
good deal of confidence in the house in Berners-street, until circum-.
stances (mentioned in his letter) rose his suspicions. Mr. Fauntleroy’s
letter, annexed, relative to the party walls, serves to show the attempts
he is making to convert all his property and debts into ready cash ; and,
the certificate from Mr. Graham, in support of the property in question
being exclusively Mr. Fauntleroy's, is calculated to give rise to some
curious refections.  Mr. Parkins also complains loudly of the sump-
tuous style in which Mr. F. is now living, and of his having very re-
cently disposed of his equipages, to put the proceeds out of the reach’
of his creditors.

From Mr. H. Fauntleroy to Mr. Jos. Stephenson.

Sir,—I have directed Mr. Wm. Kerie, Solicitor, to apply to you for
the payment of l., being the amount due to me for party wallsy
and being my own sole property. For your satisfaction I have re-
quested Mr. Graham to certify this, and 1 have to request your settle-
ment forthwith. I remain, Sir, your very obedient servant,

- London, Sept, 24, 1824, Hexry FauNTLEROY.
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From Mr. G. E. Graham to Mr. Joseph Sbephensun*;-

Sir,—I am given to understand, from Mr. Wm, Kerie, that }fm.[ are
desirous to know if the debt due from you to Mr. Fauntleroy, for h';ilf'
ty walls, &c., is his own estate. I beg to state that it is so, and that:
alone superintended it for him, as being in my neighbourhood ; and’
being e in other works of a similar nature for our firm, he look-
ed to me for advice in the matter. I remain, Sir, your obedient
servant.
27, Bryanstone-square, Sept. 24, 1824. . G.E.Granam.

To Mr. Fauntleroy.

Str,—I was in hopes that your answer, which I have just received by;
the two-penny post, would have saved me the disagreeable trouble of'
ﬁain addressing you ; but both public and private justice requires this

ditional saerifice of my time and feelings, to state that, immediately .
after the trial of Hicks, at which I stated, on the credit of your and the-
whole posse of your clerks® verbal declaration, as alse Mr. Stracey’s
written one, in reply to my note to you, that the check for 60001,
drawn in favour of the Rev. Edward Finch, was not in existence—
Immediately, I say, after the above trial, I wrote to Mr. Stracey, in-
quiring into this extraordinary dereliction and breach of trust, to.
which and several other written and personal applications for a whole-
week, I received nothing but verbal evasions, as I did also from the:
bank in Berners-street, excepting from one of the clerks, who stated.
that you had written a note by Harmer to your partner, Graham, to
deliver up my check, and other documents, to Harmer ; on which I
called upon Plank, the police officer who app ehended you, and desired
him, which he prnmiseﬁn do, to ask you whether you had done so or
not; and at the same time observed to him, that I could not believe it
possible that you had acted such a part, and used the emphatic ex-
pression, that, ** neither you nor the devil should be made blacker than+
what you deserved, if I could helpit.” And although the injury to:
me, and the defeating the ends of justice, is equally the same, whether
it proceeds from you or any other of the members of the bank ; yet it
is always some satisfaction to me to know by whom it is that I am in--
jured ; and T must beg toobserve, that it is passing strange ‘that you .
should give me so much trouble; ten or twelve days personal attendance -
at the House of Correction, and at least a dozen letters, and that you =
should only this day condescend to favour me with a direct answer to the -
following plain question,—*¢Did you or did you not give directions for
my check and papers to'be given up to George Hicks's attorney, as
also your own attormey—the noted James Harmer? and for fear you
have not kept a copy of your laconic answer to my note, I subjoin it:

“1 knew nothing of the papers * mentioned in your letter having
been given up, until T saw the report in the newspapers of the follow- -
ing d?u Your obedient servant,

“ Wednesday, Sept. 29, H. FAuNTLEROY™"

* 1t was not for the papers (my will and other documents which,
in my confidence, I eatrusted to Captain Salmon, and he to your part-
ners, prior to my arrival in England from India) that 1 applied for to.
youand Stracey; but my check for the 6000., which had been ob-
tained from me under false pretences hy Hicks, Wollaston, and.
Finch. i

c?



36

1 now, Sir, take leave of you, but still shall look to your partners
to account to me for this extraordinary dereliction of duty and breach
of trust, at which twelve of the principal Eaukers of London, to whom
I have written, express their horror and indignation ; but as yet I
have refraiced from makiog it known to the public, which it is my
duty to do—and I am, Sir, your cvbedient servant,

J. W, PAREINS

From Mr. Stracey to J. W. Parkins, Esq.

Mr. Stracey presents his compliments to Mr, Parkins, and trusts
that the multiplicity of most anxicus business in which he has lately
been engaged, will plead his excuse for not answering sooner Mr. P.'s
note respecting the check for 6000L., especially as from Mr. 8.'s situ-
ation he has been prevented from going to the banking-house for
some time past, where only the information could be obtained. Mr.
S.recollects that on the receipt of Mr. P.'s note respecting it, he was
informed that the check had been returned to Mr. P, and he informed
Mr, P. accordingly, and that although he could not have the check,
still he could have the pumbers of the bank notes with which the
check was paid. Much then was Mr. 8. surprised when he was in-
formed upon his enquiry, owing to Mr. I.’s late ncte, that the check
had been found, and had been delivered, upon legal demand, to Mr.
Hicks's attorney. As, then,the check is now known to be in existence,
Mr. 8. trusts that it will equally answer Mr, P.'s purposes.

Monday, October 4, 1824.

The fullowing letter 1s no ways in connexion with the present
transaction, and written under very different circumstances:

My Dear Parkins—Your letter I bave duly received, and as your
wants may be pressing, I have sent you 50[. a bapk-post letter, pay-
able to your order, and a letter of credit for what you niay requirc ex-
tra. Ihave been looking out for you in town these three or four days,
as we have a dance this evening, and lots of pretty girls, and I know
you are an admirer of them ;—I really do not know a soul in your
Salisbury-place neighbourhood, but I dare say the bankers will telk
you every thing worth seeing in the neighbourhood. 1 sheuld like to
see the four bloods. There only wanted one thing to complete it, in-
stead of the man by your side, a beautiful angel. Then the view
would have been perfect. 1 remain, ever yours,

Hexey FauntLEROY.

TLondun, May 23d, 1816,

Many curious traits in the character of Mr. Fauntleroy are at pre-
sent in circulation ; but where the anxiety to obtain them 15 so great,
several are likely to be fictitious, A singuler proof, however, of the
self-possession with which he went thrquh his work of deception, has
been related to us on unguestionable authority. One day he called at
the Bank of England, and handed over to one of the clerks a forged
power of attorney for the transfer of stock, which was held in bis name
and that of another person, whose signature he had counterfeited.
"While the clerk was glancing over the paper, the very person whose
name had been abused, happened to enter the Bank. The moment
Fauntleroy perceived him, he with amazing presence of mind, turned
towards the clerk, and saying that he had forgot to insert something in



37

the power of attorney, begged it to be given back to him. The request
was complied with. Afterwards advancing towards his friend, he
shook hands with him in the most cordial manner, and walked with
him out of the Bank. As an instance of the utter indifference with
which he looked upon the victims of his guilt, it is said that he was in
habits of intimacy with almost all the parties whom he robbed ; and
that long afier he had squandered all their money, and while he was
aying their tli.ﬁl‘]ﬂﬂl‘.lﬁ,.?‘l& uzed frequently to attend companies at their
ouzes, and to invite them to his own in return,

Mr. Fauntleroy had a rather superior collection of books, not, how-
ever, exceeding one thousand volumes, at his residence in Berners-
street, Many of them are valuable works. Amongst them is a * Pen-
nant's London illustrated,” which has already made some noise with
the curious in hooks. It is one of the folio copies, of which a limited
number was printed ; and it has been g0 bound as to admit prints or
drawings of all the places, persons, &c. mentioned by Mr. Pennant. It
was illustrated by Mr, F. at the expense of several hundred pounds;
where prints or copies could not be obtained, he was at the charge of
having original drawings made specially for himself. Some of Pen-
nant’s London illustrated, have sold for 302/, and 400.. each : but this
1s considered by far the most perfect copy that has yet been prepared.
It has been honoured, tvo, with the inspection of Majesty, the copy
having been borrowed for such purpose; and in the volume there
is a ﬁu_';ral letter, acknowledzing the loan. The volume also con-
tains some autographs of memorable characters. In the library, over
the mantle-piece, &c. there are some good paintings by Domeni-
chino, &c,

The most extensive forgery of this description charged upon any
person next to the present, to which, however, it bears but a slight
comparison in point of amount, that we can recollect in this country,
was that committed about thirty years ago by a gentleman named
Weston, who, at that time, moved 1s the very first society, ‘This man
forged the signature of General Toning to a document which enabled
him to get possession of 25,000L. ; and for the forgery he was tried and
executed. Weston was extremely intimate with one of the then head
clerks in the Bank of England, by whose assistance, it was afterwards
discovered, he was enabled for a Jong time to keep the forgery con-
cealed.

The night before Weston's execution, the Bank clerk passed the
night with him, and they supped together very heartily in the prison
upon cold lamb and cucumbers, In a few weeks afterwards, the
clerk himself was discovered to have committed other forgeries, and,
on his being apprehended, he contrived to find means of putting an
end to his existence by cutting his throat, 2
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TRIAL OF MR. H. FAUNTLEROY.

R —

OLD BAILEY.—Suturday, Octaber 30,

The Grand Jury of the City of London having found true hills
against Mr, Fauntleroy on the several charges of forgery preferred
azainst him, his trial was appointed to take place this morning. The
interest created by this gentleman’s case, from his first apprehension,
and the magnitude of the offences imputed to him, naturally led to
‘the anticipation that public curiesity would be greatly excited during
his trial, and that the desire to be present during the preceedings
awould induce an extraordinary effort to be made to obtain places in
‘the Court. To obviate any inconvenience which might result from
this feeling, the Sheriffs (Mr. Alderman Brown and Mr. Alderman
HKey) felt it therr duiy to take such steps as would prevent the intro-
duction of more persons than the space allotted to auditors wonld con-
veniently hold, and with this view they directed that no persons should
‘be admitted 1o the body of the Court who were not provided with
tickets sizned by themselves. :

The Students at Law claimed the exclusive privilege of accommeo-
dation in the box entitled *¢ the Students’ Box,” which is usually oc-
cupied by the Gentlemen of the Press, many of whom are not Stu-
dents; and to olwiate any inconvenience resulting from the circum-
stance, the Sherifts appointed another place for the reception of the
Reporters, who were provided with the necessary certificate of admis-
sion. The place chosen was near the Jury-box, and a temporary desk
and seats were prepared for their use.

The tickeis issued to the immediate friends of the Sheriffs were

mecessarily limited, and we have been informed that many persens
of _ranlé, although extremely anxivus to gain admission, were disap-
Jponted.
.P The galleries of the Court, being private properly, and under the
control of particular Officers of the Corporation, they of course did not
«eome within the arrangements of the Sheriffs, and formed sources of
profitable speculations to others. The sum required for admission to
‘these places was a sovereign fur each person. -

It was announced that the doors of the Court would be opened at
eight o’clock, and individuals furnished with tickets were desired to
be in attendance at that time. Lobng previous to the arrival of the
hour fixed, ihe throng began to assemble, but the number collected
did not exceed thirty or forty, and many of them were Jurymen : so
that the expectation of an oppressive crowd proved in some measure
unfounded. The precautions taken were, nevertheless, of the utmost
Importance, as even during the ordinary business of the Court, it re-
quirs soine pains to prevent interruption from the desire of persons to
hear the trials. Soon after eight o’clock, the Students’ box and the
place set apart for the Reporters were completely filled, and as the
morning advanced, other persons provided with tickets continued to
arrive. The state of the galleries, however, proved that the public in
general were not disposed 1o gratify their curiosity at any very heavy
charge, for on looking round, at nine o'clock, we did not observe
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more than twenty individuals collected, nor did the avenues of the
Court present any thing unusual in their appearance,

Among others who dgained admission by tickets to different parts of
the Court, we noticed the Earl of Montford, Lord Nugent, Mr. Ir-
vine, M.P., and the Governor and Sub-Governor of the Bank of
England. There we several Aldermen in attendance at an early hour,
including Sir James Perring, Sir James Shaw, Mr. Alderman Wood,

‘Mr. Alderman C. Smith, &c.
In the course of the morning, Plank, the officer, of Marlborough-
~street, entered the Court with a large pile of account books connected
with the proceedings, Mr. Ex-sheriff Parkins was likewise in attend-
ance, and seemed to feel an extraordinary desire for the commence-
ment of the trial, as well as no small apprehension that some un-
foresecn circumstance might produce a delay. With regard to Mr.
Fauntleroy himself, we understand that on Friday evening he had a
-long conference with his legal advisers, and again this morninz. 1In
his manner, he was perfectly cool and collected, and betrayed htile of
that nervousness which his friends had anticipated. Ie has recently
‘been visited by many of his private friends, and from one of these, we
have heard. he declared that the firm in Berners-street ought to have
-stopped in 1808; from whence it may be inferred, that it continued in.
- state of embarrassment for the last sixteen years; to avert the conse-
quences of which, rather than for the gratification of private ex-
travagance, it is said, the crimes imputed to him bave been com-
' ;ﬂitﬁtd. The truth on this subject will, no doubt, ultimately come
orth.

At nine o’clock, Mr. Serjeant Arabin took his seat on the bench,

and the Court was opened in the usval form. The Middiesex jury
‘then took their seats in the jury box, and several prisoners, charged
~with minor offences, were put to the bar to plead. The London jury
-remained in the box set apart for the jurors in waiting. :
_ At ten o'clock, Mr. Justice Park and Mr. Baron Garrow took their
- seats on the bench, accompanied by the Lord Mayor. ‘The Attorney-
. General entered the Court at the same time, and took his seat at the
table, next Mr. Freshfield, the Bank solicitor.
* Proclamation of silence was then made, and, at five minutes past
«ten o'clock, Mr. Henry Fauntleroy was conducted to the bar, between
the two City Marshai);, the head turnkey of Newgate, and accom-
‘[:anif:d by Mr. Harmer, his solicitor. e was dressed in a full suir of
lack, and the firmness which he displayed in the morning seemed for-
the moment to have deserted him, when he was exposed at the bar to
~the gaze of the Court. His step was tremulous ; his face pale,.
and much thinner than when he was first examined at Marlboroyeh-
street; his grey hair had rather a lighter hue, as if 'from the mixture
of a little powder ; he never, for one moment, raised his head, but
placing his hands upon the front of the duck, stood with dejected
~mien, while the prelimirary forms of the trial were arranging.

The Deputy Clerk of Arraigns opened the business, by addressing:
the prisoner at the bar in the usual form, and arrai ning him upory
seven different indictments for forgery, in the following manner

~(the first):

“ Henry Fauntleroy—you stand indicted, for that you on the 1st
of June, in the 55th year of the late King, in the paiish of St Mary-
la-bonne, did feloniously and falsely make and forge, and counter-

‘feit a certain deed, purporting to bear the name of Frances Young, for
the transfer of 5450[., Long Annuities, of her monies, in the stocks,
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established by the Act of the 5th of the late King George the IL., with
intent to defraud the said Frances Young of the said stock. ;

A second count laid the crime, as with intent to defraud the Go-
vernor and Company of the Bank of England.

A third count laid the indictment, as tor causing the said instrument
to be forged,

A fourth count, for feloniously uttering and disposing of the said
instrument, knowing it to be forged; and there were three other
counts, varying the mode of specifying the charge, according to the
technical subtleties of pleading. When this abstract of the first indict-
ment was read,

The Deputy Clerk of the Arraigns asked the prisoner—¢ Henry
Fauntleroy, how say you—are you guilty or not guilty of the said
felony ™

The prisoner, in a faint voice, replied, “ Not Guilty.”

The Deputy Clerk: “ How will you be tried ?”—The prisoner, still
in the same low tone of voice, and prompted by the Governor of New-
gate, answered—* By God and my country.”

The prisoner was then successively arraigned on the following six
indictments:—The second, for shat he, on the third of June, in the
55th year of the late King, in the parish of 8t, Mary-la-bonne, did
falsely furze and counterfeit, and cause to be falsely forged and coun-
terfeited, a certain transfer, purporting to be that of Frances Young,
for 5000L of her annuities, with intent to defraud her. The forgery
and fraud were also laid as in the first indictment, as with intent to
defraud the Governor and Company of the Bank of England. There
were counts also fur the wiltul uttering and disposing of the same,
with a variation of the names alleged to be defrauded.

The third indictment, which was laid in the same technical form
as the preceding, was for forging the transfer of the stock held in
the name of 1. Lyster, Esq. of Wexford, in Ireland, and uttering the
same,

The fourth indictment was for forging a transfer of 3000/, stock,
also uttered in the same name as the toregoing, on the 16th December,
in the G0th year of the late King's reign.

The fifth indictment was for forging the transfer of 435/, stock, to
defraud the Bank and John Griffiths, on the 30th June, in the fourth
vear of the present King's reign.

The sixth indictment was for, on the same date, forging and puttin
away a transfer of 5004 stock held in the same name ; and the seventh
indictment was for forging aund uttering, on the 2d of Nov. last, a

ower of attorney to transfer 5300/, annuities, entered in the name of
Jacob Tubbs. To each of these seven indictments the prisoner, in the
same subdued tone of voice, and without raising his eyes from the
bar, pleaded Not Guilty, and put himself for trial * upon God and his
country.”

The reading of the indictments occupied the Court 25 minutes. To-
wards the close of the reading,

Mr. Gurney rose and applied to the Court for permission to have the
prisoner accommodated with a chair at the bar,

Mr. Justice Park—The application is of course made on the ground
of the prisoner’s indisposition,

Mr. Gurney.—Certainly, my Lord.

Mr. Justice Park.—O, then, let him have a chair.

A chair was immediately handed to the prisoner, who sat upon it at
the right-hand corner of the dock, leaning his head upon his hand, and
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covering the greater part of his face with a white handkerchief; his
whole demeanour being at this time that of a person labouring under
deel:u despondency. )

The prisoner having pleaded, Mr. Justice Park informed the Mid-
dlesex Jury, who sat in the box, that they must remove to make way
for the London Jury. His Lordship said, that having understood from
the officer of Court, that the indictments were laid for offences com-
mitted within the jurisdiction of the city of London, the prisoner must
necessarily be tried by a London Jury. As, however, there were other
indictments against the prisoner, it might be necessary to have a
second Jury remaining in Court.

The Foreman of the Middlesex Jury:—What is the probable time,
my Lord, that it may be necessary for us to remain?

Mr. Justice Park.—I cannot pretend to say ; I know nothing of the
indictments, except what I have heard during their reading in Court,
Of course I have perused the usual depositions transmitted to the
Judges, but I know nothing further. 1 merely throw out the hint of
the possibility of a second jury being necessary, without being able to
say at all whether it is probable, or not, that their attendance will be
required.

The Middlesex Jury then retired from the box to make way for the
London Jury.

The Deputy Clerk of Arraigns again addressed the prisoner:
“ Henry Fauntleroy, these good men, whose names you will hear
called over, and who do appear, are to pass between cur Sovereign
Lord the King, and you, lile and judgment. You can challenge any of
them ; and if you do challenge, you will do so, therefore, when they
come to the book to be sworn, and before they are sworn, as you are
empowered.

The following Jurors were then empannelled without challenge,
and the prisoner committed to their charge upon the first indictment,
for forging and uttering the transfer of 5000/ Long Annuities, held at
the Bank in the name of Frances Young :—

Jol... Keeley, Foreman : John Procter,

John Mowatt, Thomas Driver,
Thomas Reeve, Abraham Agar,
Edward Joice, Thomas Clarke,
Job Elliot, Thomas Jones,

Job Horton, William Witchurchs

Mr. Law read the abstract of the indictment.

The Attorney-General then rose, and stated the case for the prose-
cution as follows :—¢ May it please you, my Lord and Gentlemen of
the Jury,—You have heard, during the reading of this indictment,
that the prisoner at the bar stands chaiged with fraudulently forging
and uttering a certain power of attorney for the transfer of certain
stock, entered in the Bank ot England in the name of Miss Frances
Young. Itis my duty on the part of the prosecution, to state to you
the circumstances out of which, according to my instructions, the pre-
sent prosecution has sprung; and alterwards to lay before you the
evidence which I have to ofter in support of this indictment. In dis-
charging the painful duty which Las thus devolved upon me, I am
buund to confine myself implicitly and strictly to a statement of facts.
This is a criminal charge, and in such a one, I amn more especially
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‘called upon, when the life of a prisoner is involved in the result, and
where ns counsel are precluded by the rule of law, from reply to any
general statement of counsel for the prosecution. I'am, I say, in such
"a case more peculiarly called upon to abstain from any effort calculated
to excite your feelings,or from giving any undue colouring to the facts.
Tf, therefore, I were in the slightest degree to -aggravate the facts,
which, according to my instructions you will have in the regular course
of the trial before you, I should not do my dutyin the manner in
which it ought to be done, but-travel beyond that line which is deco-
Tous and proper on so painful an eccasion. Having wade these pre-
liminary observations upon the manner in which, acecording to my
Judgment, Tam bound to perform my duty, ‘it will scarcely be neees-
sary for me to put you, Gentlemen of the Jury, on your guard against
any inferences disadvantageous to the prisoner, which you may have
“formed from circumstances which reached your knowledge hefore yon
.assembled in that box. The prisoner at the bar is entitled to your
judgment and decision, not on any information, suspicion, or surmise,
or impression, which may have affected your minds, by any thing
‘represented to have occurred out of doors before this day; fur these, if
vou have formed any, you must endeavour as much as possible to
‘dismiss from your recollection ; the prisoner at the bar being strictly
entitled to your judgment and decision; not, I repeat, upon this
‘previously acquired informatson respecting his case, but upon the evi-
“dence offered before you this day, in the progress of the trizl, and
con that alone. I must also beg leave to remind you, that you are
‘equally called upon to dismiss from your minds the recent recol-
lections, which you ‘must have from the forms of this day’s pro--
-ceedings, that there are other indictments found against the prisoner,
upon which he stands committed for trial, and that you are to
dpok upon the present indictment as if it were an insulated one,
and exactly as if it were the only one which the prisoner
“was called upon' to answer. I know that these observations may be
unnecessary, but still I feel it my daty te %ive you this precautienary
admonition. The prisoner at the bar, Gentlemen, was well known as
a partner in the banking-house of Marsh, Sibbald, and Co. of Berners-
street, which -was established about thirty years ago. His father was
a partner in the original firm—he had previeusly been an active clerk
in a bankingzhouse in the City, and the partuers who established the
firm, not hieing equnliy men of business themselves, Tave him a share
to avail themselves of his practical information i the management of
their aftairs. The elder Mr. Fauntleroy died in the year 1807, and his
situation was immediately occupied by his son, the prisoner at ‘the
bar, upen whom, also, for his practical knowledge of business, and
- the comparative superiority which he had in this respect over his co-
‘partners, nearly the whole of the actual business develved. In the
‘year 1815, Miss Frances Young, of Chichester, became a customer to
‘the firm, and had then entered in her nameat the bank asum of 54501,
in what were called the Three per Cent. Consols. She gave the firm
of Marshand Co. a power of attorney to receive the dividends in her
name, but gave them no power whatever to sell or otherwise dispose
“of the principal. In May, 1815, however, an application was m}?:{: at
the Bank, and represented as having been so made in behalf of thia
Tady, to sell by her power of attorney 5000L of this stock. You are
probably aware of the forms preseribed by the Bank of England in
“transacting the business of these transfers, The applicant goes to the
Bank, and obtains a slip of paper, whieh he fills up with the name of



43

‘the party in whose behalf he applies ; he deseribes the stock in the
‘Bank, the amount and particulars required to be transferred, and the
mame and address of the persun to whom the transfer is to be made.
Upon receiving these instructions in the form inserted upon the slip
ufP;aper, the Bank clerk, to whom it is delivered, hands over a power
of attorney, which is to be transmitted to the person who is to make
the transfer, for the purpose of receiving the requisite signature. Itis
customary at the Bank to preserve these slips of paper, but in this in-
stance the particular slip bas been lost, and it cannot therefore be said
to whom it was delivered, it being usual to endorse the name of the

on the slip. But the power of attorney, which was prepared ac-
cording to the slip =0 made 1s referred, with the necessary attestations
of the witnesses. There must be to these powers of attorney two at-
‘testing witnesses, with the deseription of their respective names and
addresses.  This power of attorney, purported to be signed by Frances
Young, and that signature wonld be proved to be a forgery. The at-
testing wimesses were John Watson and James Tyson, clerks in the
bank of Marsh and Co., and their signatures were lso forgeries—for
they never transacted any business with Miss Frances Young, and
‘never executed any transfer of stock for her. 1In all these documents
it is required by the Bank that the date shall be set forth in words at
dength. This 1s so donein this forged transfer, and it will be proved
‘to be in the bandwriting of the prisoner at the bar, in all its parts. It
must be quite clear, therefore, that the forgery has been committed
‘either by the prisoner, or with his knowledge. ‘The attesting witnesses
are his ¢lerks, men whose handwriting must have been known to him,
-anda forgery of which he must at onece have deteeted, if brought to him
by athird party. The practice at the Bank of England was, that,
when these transfers, after being duly filed, were executed, they must
be depasited for twenty-four hours with the clerk, for the purpose of
being compared with the books, and for such other nspection and
precaution as were deemed necessary on these occasions for the security
.of property, so far as time and circumstances allowed. After all these
preliminary steps, the applicant was further called upon before the in-
strument was completed, to write at the bottom these words: “ 1 de-
‘mand this power to be executed in my name,” signed by the party.
«On the 31st of May, or the 1st of June, the prisoner at'the bar attend-
ed in person at the Bank, and demanded in due form, the execution of
the said power of attorney. So that here you will have before you a
power ol attorney prepared in the prisoner’s handwriting, purporting
to be executed by Franees Youns, purporting to be attested by two of
his clerks, with whose handwriting, T repeat, he must have been ne-
cessarily acquainted ; and he himself presenting the instrument and de-
manding that it be executed in the nsual inanner.  But sufficient as this
would be to prove the case, itis not all, for I am about to state to you,
‘that we have besides a document, of a charaecter so extraordinarv, so sin-
-glzjlarl"!r{:umplel;e in all its parts, as to leave no possible doubt that
‘the prisener at the bar was the party who had committed the offence.
‘When the prisoner was taken into custody in bhis own counting-house,
he, in the presence of the officer, locked his private desk with a key
which was then attached to his watch—that key was afterwards taken
from him by the officer; and when the respectable solicitor for the
Bank, who conduets this prosecution, went to search the house in
‘Berners-street for the prisoner’s papers, to ascertain whatever parti-
ceulars he could therein find respecting these transactions, he found in
one of the rooms of Messrs. Marsh's bank, in which tin cases, con-
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taining title deeds of their customers, were deposited, and on which
the names of the owners were inscribed, one tin box without a name.
This led him to examine it. The key was found in the prisoner’s
private desk, which he had himself locked in the presence of the officer,
and on opening this box was found a number of private papers belong-
ing to the prisoner, and among them the extraordinary document of
which I have apprised you,and which ran thus, all in the handwriting
of the prisoner:—* Consols, 11,151/, standing in the name of my
trusteeship; 5000L E. W. Young; 6000L Consols, General Young;
5000/ Long Annuities, Frances Young; another 6000L ; Lady Nelsun,
11,595/ ; Mrs. Ferrar, 20,0004, 4 per Cents. ; Earl of Ossory, 7000. 3
T. Owen, 9400L.; J. W. Parkins, 4000/.; Lord Aboyne, 6000L; P.
Moore and John Marsh, 21,0004 This paper contained a total of
sums considerably exceeding 100,000{., was all written in the prisoner’s
handwriting, and these words, in the same hand, followed and con-
cluded the tact of the prisoner’s guilt.—* In order to keep up the cre-
dit of our house, I have forged powers of attorney, and have thereupon
sold out all these sums, without the knowledge of any of my part-
ners. I have given credit in the accounts for the interest when it
became due. May 7th, 1816. (Sizned) Henry Fauntleroy.”—1hese
words followed : # The Bank began first to refuse our acceptances, and
thereby todestroy the credit of our house ; they shall therefore smart for
it.” This is the extraordinary document to which I allude; and wasthere
everarecord of a fraud more intellizible, and yet more negligently kept?
There i¢ no doubt, I think, that when the prisoner at the bar drew up
this singular and conclusive document, that he contemplated some in-
tention for which it was applicable, perhaps to abscond, and protect
his partners from any suspicion of participation in his acts. Be the
intention, however, what it nay, if to abscond, it was clear the pri-
soner had subsequently altercd his intention, and at all events, nothing
but unaccountable negligence could have prevented him from after-
wards destroying a document of such a nature, and so fatal to his cha-
racter. The Bank of England, in consequence of this information,
roceeded to examine the private accounts, kept by the prisoner with
is firm, and they there found that the accounts of the parties whose
monies were fraudently transferred were regularly kept up, and the in-
terest upon the dividends as rezularly carried to them, every half-year,
as if the original stock remained in being. In the particular case be-
fore you, the broker (Mr. Spurling) employed by the prisoner at the
bar, sold out stock in question 1o the amount of 20501, 25, 6d., that is,
exclusive of the commission for the sale, which, according to practice,
the broker divided with the firm. This amount was pai?l over hy the
broker to the banking-house of Messrs. Martinand Co., who transacted
business for Messrs, Marsh and Co. in the city, and is régularly noted
in the day-book of the latter, by aclerk,by whom the entry was madeat
the dictation of the prisoner. But, in further management of the ac-
counts, in passing from the day-book to the private ledger, this sum ap-
peared to have been carried to Mr. Fauntleroy’s private account. The
general produce was, however, afterwards posted, so as to kee&u{_the
accounts according to the original amount entrusted to the bank by
the respective customers. You will, Geuntlemen of the Jury, natu-
rally ask yourselves, as this occurred so far back as the year 1815,
how it happened that during the successive years which have intervened,
the dividends could have been so managed by the prisoner in his ac-
counts, as to escape the detection of his partners? The fact, however,
was, that the prisoner had the entire management for the firm of theic
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stock-market business, When the dividends berame payable, it was
the practice to make out a list for one of the partners to go to the
Bank of England and receive payment. These lists were always pre-
pared by the prisoner himself, and he always continued so to manage
the entry in the books as to correspond with the nominal amount of
stock entrusted to the firm by their eustomers. The list was of course
so made out as to make every thing appear entered in the manner the
entries would have stood had the stock still existed, and sums were al-
ways carried on to the accounts, so as to keep up the delusion. It used
to be the custom for Mr, Mar:h to go to the Bank and receive the di-
vidends for the firm ; he lived in the country, and only came to town to
perform this part of the business; he was, therefore, as to all the other

arts of the arrangement, entirely ignorant, and incapable of detecting
the fraud. There is another fact which I think it my duty to explain
to you; the note of the broker for the sale of this particular stock,
which Mr. Fauntleroy cught, were the transaction a bona-fide one, to
have transmitted to the owner, was found amongst his other papers in
the private tin box, which contained the extraordinary document I
have already read to you. These, Gentlemen, are the whole of the
facts which 1 undcrtu{:e to establish by evidence before you, against
the prisoner at the bar. I shall first prove the forgery, by producing
the instrument, and proving, by the parties whose names are said to
be affixed to it, that the signatures are not theirs. 1 shall next prove,
that the handwriting in the body of the instrument is that of the
prisoner himself. 1 shall then, by the production of the extraordinary
document to which I have alluded, prove that he recorded the act as
his’; and from the accounts it will be clear that they were so continued
by him, with great activity and caution, as to evade the detection of
the forzeries, which he alone could have committed. Having stated
these facts, 1 have discharged my duty in behalf of the prosecution,
and it would ill become me to proncunce any opinion upon the effect
of such facts. ‘That is your province, Gentlemen of the Jury, alter
you have heard the whole details of the evidence. Having said that
i have now discharged my duty, I am persuaded, Gentlemen, you will
also discharge yours, painful as it may be, between the prisoner and
his country, with an equal and impartial hand.

J. Tyson sworn, and examined by Mr. Serjeant Bosanquet.—I have
been a clerk 17 years in the banking-house of Marsh, Sibbald, and Co.
The prisoner, whose father was a partner at the timie, entered the
house in the same year, 1807. The firm then consisted of Mr. Marsh,
who resided at Watford, Mr. 8. J. Sibbald, Mr. Graham, who was a
Colonel in the army, Mr. Stracey, and Mr. Fauntleroy, the father of
the prisoner. In 1807, Mr. Fauntleroy, the father of the prisoner,
died (the prisoner here sighed deeply). 1 always considered that Mr.
Fauntleroy was the most active partner in the establishment. He
transacted most of the business himself. I remember the exccution
of a warrant of attorney by the prisoner in 1815, for the transfer of
stock, which stood in the name of Frances Young, of Chichester, in
the Three per Cent. Consols. Miss Young was a customer, and
banked at Marsh, Siracey, and Co's. (a document was put into the
hands of the witness,) This is a warrant of attorney, dated 21st of
May, 1818, for the transfer of stock from the name ot Miss Young to
that of Mr. Flower, a stock-broker. It purports to be attested by me,
and another clerk in Marsh and Co’s. bank. It is signed * J. Tyson;”
and after the signature ¢ J. Tyson,” are the words ‘¢ Clerk to Messrs.
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Marsh, Sibbald, and Co., bankers, Berners-street.” The handwrit
ing is not mine, it is that of Mr. Fauntleroy ; 1 have no doubt of it, as
1 have been accustomed to see him write daily and hourly, for years.
There is also the signature ¢ 1. Fauntleroy” to the dpuwer of attorney, .
It is in the handwriting of the prisoner; it is signed * H. Fauntleroy,
banker, Berners-street,” as attorney for Miss Young; the prisoner
then lived in Berners-street; the power of attorney is for the transfer
of 5450/, stock. There was no other James Tyson, a clerk, in the
bank.

John Watson sworn, and examined by the Attorney-General :(—TI
have been for 25 years a clerk in the banking-house of Marsh and Co.,.
and up to the failure of the house; there 1s no other John Watson, a
clerk, in the lwmse; I see the signature “ John Watson,” and the
words * Clak to Marsh, Sibbald, and Co., bankers, Berners-street,”
upon the power of attorney, which is now put into my hands ; it is the
handwriting of Mr. Fauntleroy. I do not know Miss Young; my
signature is put to this document as an attesting witness to the execu-
tion of the power of attorney. I did not see Miss Young sign the docu- .
ment, as my attestation purports. I see it is signed * Frances Young,
1815." The signature and date arein the prisoner’s handwriting.
I see the demand for the transfer of the stock: it is in Mr. Faunt-.
leroy’s handwriting. The signature to the demand, * H. Fauntleroy,"
is the handwriting of the prisoner. The words, “ I demand the trans- .
ferof stock from Frances Young to—— Flower, Gent. stock-broker,”
&c., are the handwriting of Mr. Fauntleroy.

Robert Browning the younger, sworn,—I am clerk in the Bank of
England, in the 8 per cent Consols Office, and have been for 20 years,
I see this power of attorney, now put into my hands, dated 1st June, .
1815. My name is upon the document as the subseribing witness. [
remember the prisoner bringing the power of attorney to the Bank,and
demanding to act as attorney for Miss Young. 1 see the words © I de-
mand to act;” they are written by the prisoner, and his signature is af-
fixed. T saw the prisoner write the words ¢ H. Fauntleroy,” to the de-
mand, and my signature follows as wituess to the demand. = I am sure
I saw the prisoner sign it. He wrote the demand, and signed it in my
presence in the 6th Division in the Consols Office.

Mr. Justice Park—The sixth division, what does that mean ? I don't
understand it?

Witness—The office business is divided into different departments.
Ihave the Bank-book in which the transfer of Consols is entered. By
referring to the day in question, the 1st of June, 1815, I found an
entry of Consols in the name of Miss Frances Young, of Chi-
chester. On that day Miss Young had the sum of 54501 3 per
Cent. Consolidated Annuities standing in her name. I have seen
the book in which transfers of stock are entered. I hold itin my hand.

Mr. Attorney-General—Before you look at the transfer book, say if
the amount of stock transferred, entered in that book, is signed by the
person transferring it? i

Witness—It was always S}iigm:d by the persen making the transfer.

The Attorney-General—Now, Sir, see if there is an entry in that
book of the transfer of 5450!. stock from Miss Young to Flower,
stock-broker, on the 1st of June, 1815, and if it is signed, and by
whom ?

Witness—I find an entry of 54501 stock, transferred from the
name of Frances Young to —— Flower, Gent. stock-broker. I
find the name of Henry Fauntleroy, as attorney of Frances Young,




47

spinster, of Chichester, - The date, * the Ist. of June,” and !’l:l.B.Big-f
nature, “ [I. Fauntleroy,” are the proper handwriting of the pri-
soner, and were written by him in my presence. My name, as
the attesting witness, is written in the margin.  The name of the
broker appears also to the transfer, thus: “Wm, Flower, Stock Ex-
change.” A

M rgﬂ Alley—You swear you saw the prisoner write the demand and
sign it?— Witness: Yes, I do.

The Counsel for the prosecution proposed to call evidence to show
that the Bank had replaced the stock of which Miss Young had been
defrauded by the prisoner’s forging the warrant of attorney ; it being
absolutely necessary to show that she had no interest in the prisoner’s
conviction, before she could be allowed to prove that her signature to
the warrant of attorney was a forgery.

. The Attorney-General then called the following witness :— :

Robert Best sworn, and examined by Mr. Serjeant Bosanquet.—I am
Secretary to the Bank of England, and now produce a book containing
the orders of the Directors relative to the =ale and transfer of stoek.
On the 21st of October an order was made by the Directors to purchase
53501. 3 per cent Consols, and place it in the name of Miss F.,
Young, of Chichester. The order of the Directors was confirmed .on
the 28:h of October, and the entry of that order s inserted in the book
I produce.—The witness commenced reading the preamble of the
order, stating, .* that whereas certain stock, to the amount of 55501
1;’;]uf:r cent. Consols, which stood in the name of Frances Young, of

ichester, spinster, had been transferred by means of a forged
power of attorney, &c. that the Directors, hail resolved to replace
the same,” &e. .

Mr. Gurney took an objection to the reading of the preamble of the.
order.—Mr. Broderick also contended, that it was not admissible evi-
dence, though the minute of the order of the Court of Directors might
be evidence. ;

Mr. Justice Park said, that the minute of the order of the Directors:
might be read, but he was of opinion that the preamble was not legal
evidence.—Witness continued : The entry of the minute isin the hand-
writing of Mr. Watson, Clerk in the Bank. The original order is in.
the handwriting of the Chairman of the Court of Directors, and the en-
tryisa copy. The order was cunfirmerl on the 28th of October. I read
over the minute to the Court of Directors, and they cenfirmed the ordee
in my presence. An order was given to the stock-broker of the Bank:
to buy 55501{. 3 per cent. Consols, in pursuance of this order of the Di-
lfctors; the stock has been bought, and placed to the account of Miss:

‘oung.
. E'El%_jamin Cole sworn, and examined by Mr. Law.—On the 22d of
October I was applied to, to make a purchase of 5550L in the 3 per
cent. Consols, in the name of Miss F. Young, of Chichester, on the
part of the Baok of England. I made the purchase. The cash I paid
tor the stock was 48120, 10s, and it was transferred to the name
of Miss Frances Young, of Chichester. I afterwards received an
order from the Governor of the Bank, to pay me the amount which L
had paid for the stock ; it was signed by the Governor. T produce the
stock receipt, and the Consols are transferred from the name of the Ac=
comptant General to that of Frances Young. :
.- Mr. Browning, the clerk to the Bank of England, was again called,
and-stated, I produce the ledger in which stock is entered. Miss Young

3
C
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has eredit for 55500, Consolidated Annuities, in the stock book. The
entry is made on the 22d of October, 1824.

© Mr. Justice Park.—This evidence does not affect the merits of the
case ; but it was essential to render Miss Young a competent witness.
Had not the stock, which it is allezed she has been defrauded of, been
replaced, she would have had an interest in proving that her signature
to the puwer of attorney was forged ; but the stock being replaced in
her name, she has no interest whatever in the conviction.

Mr. Gurney here rose, and said that he still had an objection to make
to the evidence of that lady. He did not deny that proof had been

iven of the Bank having replaced the stock, but no evidence had yet

een given that Miss Young had received the dividends from 1815 to
the present time ; and till that fact was proved, he contended that she
was an incompelent witness; because it was her interest to prove
the f;:rgery, that she might be enabled to recover her dividends of the
Bank.

The Attorney-General said, that he should prove that the dividends
had been paid.

Mr. Freshfield, the Bank Solicitor, proved the execution of a power
of attorney, transferring the sum of 55350/ 3 per Cent. Consols to Miss
¥. Young, on the 22d of October. He was present at the execution.—
The instrument was read by the Clerk of the Arraizns.

Mr. Justice Park now decided, that the Counsel for the prosecution
were entitled to call Miss Young, if they thought proper.

Miss Frances Young sworn. (This young lady seemed to be ex-
ceedingly agitated as she entered the witness-box.) She stated--T re-
sided in Chichester, in the year 1515, and Messrs. Marsh, Sibbald, and
Co., of Berners-street, were my bankers, In the year 1815, I had the
sum of 5450. stock in the 3 per Cent. Conscls; Messrs. Marsh and
Co. received the dividends for me. I invested a further sum of 100/
a short time since. I received from Marsh and Co. regularly the divi-
dends of 5430L. up to the period when I made the last purchase, and
after that time I received a dividend upon 5550/ I never authorized
Marsh and Co. to sell any part of the stock for me; I never authorized
the prisoner to make a transfer of it.—[ A paper was put into the hand
of witness.]—I see the siznature, “ Frances Young,” to this transfer ;
it is not my handwriting.

By the Judge : I never gave authority to any one to transfer the
stncf;.—-B;,r the Attorney-General: I was not in London in May, or
June, 1815. I was in Chichester.

Mr. James Tyson, clerk of Marsh and Co., again examined by Mr.
Serjeant Bosanquet: It was usual for Mr. Marsh, the senior partner in
the bank, to go to the Bank of England to receive the dividends. Mr.
Marsh lived 1n the country, and usually came to London for that pur-
pose. 1t was the practice for a list of the djvidends to be made out,
and for Mr. Marsh to take it to the Bank. e list was usually made
out by Mr.Fauntleroy; in fact, I believe he always made out the
list. The list contained the names of the parties to whom dividends
were dué, and the sums they were entitled to, and which Mr. Marsh
was to receive (a list shown to the witness). This is the list of the
July dividend in Consols, in 1824. It 1s indorsed by Mr. Fauntleroy,
the prisoner at the bar, thus, “ 3 per Cent. Consols, July, 1824, Marsh,
Stracey & Co.”

By Mr. Justice Parke,—I am positive the indorsement is the pri-
soner’s handwriting,
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- By Mr. Serjeant Bosanquet.—The list contains names, and sums op-
osite to them. The whole are written by Mr, Fauntleroy. The list
15 alphabetical. The red fizures are in the handwriting of the Bank
clerk. In the list under the letter Y, is inserted the name ¢ Frances
Young,” and the sum opposite the name is 5450/, When Mr. Marsh
received the dividends he paid them to Mr. Fauntleroy, who kept an
account.

Attorney-General —You have the book in which the account of the
dividends was kept 2—Witness. Yes, I have.

Attorney-General.—By whom were the dividends of July, 1824,
entered into that book ?

Witness: The first twenty-four names are entered by Mr. Fauntle-
roy, the remainder by a clerk in the Bank.

Attorney-General : Is the name of Frances Young in one of the
Ec?t}'-fﬂur entries 7—Witness: That name stands twenty-third in

e list.

Attorney-General : Read the entry.—Witness: Frances Young,
#5501 Consols.—Dividend, 83/ 5s. 0d. ;

Attorney-General : Produce the book containing the account of the
dividends of 1815.—Witness: I have that book.

Attorney-General : Refer to the July dividends in 1815.—Wit-
ness: I find an entry there F. Young., Consols 5450/ Dividend
750 19s. 0d.

Attorney-General : Produce the buok containing the 1816 dividends.
—Witness: I find an entry in January, 1816. There are names and
sums. The three first are in Mr. Fauntleroy’s hand-writing; the rest
are written by the clerk. I do not find the name of F. Young in the
names written by Mr. Fauntleroy; the name F. Young written third
in the list of names written by the clerk, and the sum opposite to it is
4540/. The witness then went through the different books, showing
that the lists of dividends had been regularly entered by Mr. Fauntle-
Toy every quarter as they were paid, and that he must have been cogni-
zant of the forgery by which the stock was transferred.

Attorney-General: Refer to the day-book, in which are entries
on the 1st of June, 1815.—Witness: I have the bouk, and found
several entries,

Attorney-General : Is there one entry of the sum of 29331, 2s. 6d.7
—Witness : There is.

Attorney-General : To whose credit is that sum placed —Witness :
To the credit of H, F., meaning Mr. Fauntleroy.

Attorney-General : There is an entry of 2993/ 2s. 6d., is there not?
—Witness: There is.

Attorney-General: And between the two entries you have men-
tioned there is the sum of 40/, inserted, making, if added together, the
sum of 2053/ 2s. 6d. to the sum of 20050, 2s. 6d.

Attorney-General—Produce the private book of Marsh and Co., and
refer to an item of the date of June 6th.

Witness—I find an entry in Mr. Graham’s hand-writing of 407 in
the name of Ryan. There is an erasure in the next item, on the same
line. The items June 1st, 2655/, 2s. 6d. and the 40/ are in the hand-
writing of Mr. Fauntleroy, and also the item of 29931, 25. 6d., which is
placed to Mr. F.’s account.

Mr. Justice Park put the book in the hands of the Jury, for theirin-
Spection.

Cross-examined by Mr. Gurney: This money is placed to the eredit
of Mr. Fauntleroy, mn his private account, The sums are very large;
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to ‘the amount of 50,000l T den’t know whether the money found
its way into the funds of the bank, as that rests with the partners
themselves, T don’t know whether they were drawn out on Mr. F's
-account ; Marten and Co. were our city bankers; they received this
money ; Mr. Stracey would know whether this was applied to Faunt-
Jeroy’s account or not ; but the clerks know nothingof it. It was the
custom to make entries to initials. We were merely ordered to make
';m entry of them in the ledger. [The ledger was now handed to the
ury.

.]bcrr n Henry Spurling called by the Attorney-General. In 1815 [
was clerk to Mr. Solomon, who was stock-broker to Marsh and Co.
“On the first of Jupe, I sold out the sum of 5000{. Conszols for Miss
Young, of Chichester. It is entered in the book. The amount of the
‘money produced by the sale was 29564 5s. Then deduacting 1 per
‘centage, there wus left 2050/ 2s. 6d. The amount was paid on the
1st of June, with my drait, to the account of Marsh and Co, at the
banking-house of Marten and Co. I delivered the note of the sale to
Marsh and Co.

The note of sale was now put in, and read by Mr. Clarke.

Samuel Plank called—I am a police officer, uf Marlborough-street
-office, I apprehended the prisoner the 10th of September, at his
banking-house, in Berners-street. There was a dEﬁ-ﬂ. in the room
where the prisoner was, which he locked after I went in, He knew I
had come to apprehend him. The key with which he locked it, I
took from his watch at Marlborough-street; I delivered it to Mr.
Freshfield. I went with Mr. Freshfield afterwards to the bauking-
house, and searched the desk with Mr. Fresbfield. There was a pri-
wvate drawer in the desk, and from it T took some more keys. There
were papers there, and they were brought away by me. The prisoner
avas examined that day. The keys found in the desk were kept in my
possession till after the examination,  When I went, after the exami-
mation, to the bank with Mr. Freshfield, we found two boxes.
“ Fauntleroy” was on one of them. 1 tried them with the keys, and
they opened ‘them ; after that T locked the boxes, and delivered the
keys to Mr, Freshfield ; the boxes were taken away by Mr. Freshfield
in a coach,

Mr. Freshfield, the Bank solicitor, was now called: T went to the
house of Marsh and Co. with the officer, the day the prisoner was a
prehended ; T made search there. T received a key from Plank the
officer ; it opened the private desk of the prisoner; in the desk were
found some other keys. After the examination I returned to the
banking-house, and In a room at the back of the partners’ room, I
found two boxes : one had the name of “ Fauntléroy” upon it. There
was another box by'it. 1 desired the officer to try the box with the
keys, that I might not take the box of any other person than the pri-
soner. He did so; and finding from the papers that it belonged to
the prisoner, I tock it home with me. In the course of the sume
night I went through the whole of one, and half of the other, One
contained a number of deeds, probates of wills, letters of administra-
tion, and official documents, In the other, there were a sreat num-
her of memorandums, and diaries ; also, the sale note '!_'II'L"ILﬁlCEI:l. He
found also the paper I now hold, (the paper alluded to by the Attor-
ney-General in his opening speech.)

Mr. Tyson, the clerk in the house of Marsh and Co. said, that the
usual method was to put the sale note on the file. Itis copied into a
book by one of the clerks,
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James Kirby, another clerk in the house, stated, that he had
searched the books of the house, and found none of the transfers of
stock had been entered. They would lLave been so in the regular
course of business, ;

Mr. Watsen was re-examined, to prove that the paper found in the
box was the handwriting of the prisoner. The paper was now put in,
and read by Mr. Clarke.

Mr. Justice Park: Prisoner, the case on the part of the prose-
cution being now closed, and your Counsel baving examined the wit-
nesses; they not being permitted to make a speecﬂ fuor you, you may,
if you wish, say any thing you think proper to the Jury or to me.

Mr. Fauntleroy then rose, and drawing a paper from his bosom,
said, with a sorrowful and dejected air, * My Lord, I will trouble you
with a few words.” Then, wiping away a tear which forced itself
down his pallid cheek, he proceeded, in a very low, and sometimes .
hardly audible veice, to the following effect:—

DEFENCE.

¢ My Lords and Gentlemen of the Jury.—Overwhelmed as I am
by the situation in which I am placed, and being uninformed in what
manner I should answer the charges which have been alleged against
me, I will endeavour to explain, so well as the poignancy of my feel-
ings will enable me, the embarrassments of the Banking-house in
which I have been for many years the active and only responsible part= -
ner, and which have alone led to the present investization ; and al-
though I am aware I cannot expect to free myself from the obloquy
brought upon me by my anxiety to preserve the credit and respecta-
bility of the firm, still I trust that an impartial narrative of the occur-
rences will obtain for me the commiseration of the well-disposed part
of the community.

Anticipating the Court will extend its indulgence to me, I will re-

ctfully submit such observations as I think will tend to remove from
influenced minds those impressions, which with sorrow I say must
have been made upon them by the cruel and illiberal manner which
the public prints have untruly detailed a history of my life and con-
duet, hoping therefrom I may deserve your compassion, although I
may be unable to justify my proceedings, and secure my liberation by
a verdict of the Jury, yet they may be considered, in the mercy of the
Court and of a discerning public, as some extenuvation of the crimes
with which I stand arraigncs.
~ With this object it is necessary that T should first state, shortly, the
circumstances under which I have been placed during my connexion
with Marsh and Co.

& My father established the Banking-house in 1792, in conjunction
with Mr. Marsh, and other gentlemen. Some of the partners retired
in 1794, about which time a %uss of 20,0001, was sustained. Here com-
menced the difiiculties of the house. In 1796, Mr. Stracey and another
g'en_tlelman came into the firm, with little or no augmentation of
capital.

En 1800, T became a clerk in the house, and continued =o six years,
and although during that time I received no salary, the firm were so
well satisfied with my attention and zeal for the interest and welfare of
the establishment, that I was handsomely rewarded by them. In
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1207 my father died ; I then succeeded him ; at this time I was only
92 years of age, and the whole weight of an extensive but needy bank-
ing establishment at once devolved upon me, and I found the concern
deeply involved in advances to builders and others, which had render-
ed a system of discounting necessary, and which we were cbliged to
continue in consequence of the scarcity of money at that time, and
the necessity of making further advances to those personsto secure the
sums in which they stood indebted.

In this perplexed state the house continued till 1810, when its em-
barrassments were greatly increased, owing to the bankruptcies of
Brickwood and others, which bronght upon 1t a sudden demand for no
less a sum than 170,000l. the greater part being for the amount of
bills which vur house had accepted and discounted for these parties,
since become bankrupts.

About 1814, 1815, and 1816, from the speculations with builders and
brickmakers, &c. in which the house was engaged, it was called upon
to provide funds to mear 100,c00l. to avert the losses which would
otherwise have visited it from those speculations.

In 1819, the most responsible of our partners died, and we were
called upon to pay over the amount of his capital, although the sub-
stantial resources of the house were wholly inadequate to meet so large
a payment.

During these numerous and trying difficulties the house was nearly
without resources, and the whole burthen of management falling upon
-me, I was driven to a state of distraction, in which I could meet with
no relief from my partners, and almost broken hearted, T sought re-
sources where 1 could, and so long as they were provided, and the
credit of the house supported, no inquiries were made, either as to the
manner in which they were procured, or as to the sources from whence
they were derived.

In the midst of these calamities, not unknown to Mr. Stracey, he
uitted England and continued in France, on his own private business,
or two years, leaving me to struggle, as well as I could, with- difficul-

ties almost insurmountable.

Having thus exposed all the necessities of the house, I declare that
all the monies temporarily raised by me were applied, not in one in-
stance for my own separate purposes or expenses, but in every case
they were immediately placed to the credit of the house in Berners-
street, and applied to the payment of the pressing demands upon it.
This fact does not rest on my assertion, as tf]e transactions referred to
are entered in the books now in the possession of the assignees, and to
which I have had no access since my apprehension. ngse books, L
understand, are now in court, and will confirm the truth of my state-
ment : and to whatever account all the sums may be entered, whether
to that of stock, of exchequer bills, or to my private account, the
whole went to the general funds of the banking-house.

I alone have been doomed to suffer the stizma of all the transac-
ticns ; buttortured as I have been, it now becomes an imperative duty
to explain to you, Gentlemen, and through you to the world at larze,
that the vile accusations heaped upon me, known to be utterly false by
all those who are best acquainted with my private life and habits, have
been so heaped upon me, for the purpose of loading me with the whole
of the obloquy of those trans:mti-:-ns,l;gom which, and from which alone,
my partners were preserved from bankruptey. I have been accused of
crimes I never even contemplated, a.ndp of acts of profligacy I never
committed ; and I appear at this bar with every prejudice against me,
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and almost prejudged.  To suit the purposes of the persons ‘to whom*T
‘allude, T have been represented as a man of prodigal extravagance ;
prodigal indeed I must have been, had I expended those large sums
which will hereafter be proved to have gone exclusively to support the
credit of a tottering firm, the miseries of which were greatly accele-
rated by the drafts of two of its members to the amount of near
100,0001.

I maintained but two establishments, one at Brighton, where my
mother and my sister resided in the season—the expenses of which
to me, exclusive of my wine, were within 400/. per annum. One at
Fambeth, where my two children lived, from its very nature, private
and inexpensive, to which I resorted for retircment, after many a
day passed in devising means to avert the embarrassments of the
banking-house. The :ﬁvelling—hmtsc in Berners-street belonged solely
to my mother, with the exception of a library and a single bed-room.
This was the extent of my expenditure, so far as domestic expendi-
ture is concerned. I am next accused of being an habitual gambler,
an accusation which, .f true, might easily account for the dittusion of
the property. I am, indeed, a member of two clubs, the Albion, and
the Stratford, but never in my life did I play in either, at cards or
dice, or any zame of chance ; this is well known to the zentlemen of
these clubs—and my private friends, with whom I more intimately
associated, ean equally assert my freedom from all habit or disposition
to play. It has been as cruelly asserted, [ fraudulently invested
money in the funds to answer the payment of annuities, amounting
to 2,200/ settled upon females. anE:?er did make any such invest-
ment ; neither at home or abroad, in any funds whatever, have I any
investment; nor is there one shilling secretly deposited by me in the
hands of any human being, Equally ungenerous, and equally untrue
it is, to charge me with having lent to loose and disorderly persons
large sums which never have, and never will be repaid. I lentno
sums, but to a very trifling amount, and those were advanced to
valued friends. I can, therefore, at this solemn moment, declare
most ferved®y, that I never had any advantage beyond that in which
all my partners participated in any of the transactions which are now
questioned. They, indeed, have considered themselves as partners
oniy in the profits, and I am to be burthened with the whole of the
opprobrium, that others may consider them as the vietims of my ex-
travagance. I make this statement, not with a view to criminate
others, or to exculpate myeell’; but, borne down as T am by calamity,
I will not consent to be held out to the world as a cold-blooded and
abandoned profligate, ruining all around me for the selfish gratification
of vice and sensuality, and involving even my confiding partners in
the general destruction.

Gentlemen, T have frailties and errors enough to account for, I
have sufferings enough past, present, and in prospect ; and if my life
was all that was required of me, I might endure 1o silence, though I
will not endure the odium on my memory, of having sinned to pamper
delinquencies to which I never was addicted. Thus much has been
extorted from me by the fabrications which have been cruelly spread
amongst the public, that very public from whom the arbiters of my fate
were to be selected. Perhaps, however, I ought to thank the enemy
who besieged the prison with his slanders—that he did so while my
life was spared to refute them, and that he waited not until the grave
to which he would hurry me had closed, at once, on my answer and
iy forgiveness, There is one subject more connected with these
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charges to which I am compelled to advert, and I do so with great
reluctance. It has added to the other chargesmade against me, lest
the world should think there was any vice in which I was not an adept.
I have been accused of acting treachercusly towards the female w
now bears my name, having refused to make reparation until threatened
by her brother, and of having deserted her at 2 moment when she had
the greatest claim on my protection. Delicacy forbids me entering intoan
*El‘ipianaticn on this subject, further than to declare, that the conduct I
adopted, on that occasion, was uninfluenced by the interference of any
-individual ; and arose, as I then considered, and do still consider, from
- a laudable and honourable feeling on my part ; and the lady’s brother,
50 far from coming forward at the time alluded to, was on service
An the West Indies. Could all the circumstances be exposed, I feel
convinced, that every liberal-minded man would applaud my de-
termination ; and T feel satisfaction, in stating, that the lady in ques-
tion has always been, and still is, actuated T'}r the best of feelings
towards me.

I have now only to apologize to the Court, for having entered so
much at length into the statement ol my unfurtunate case; and in
conclusion, 1 have to express my perfect confidence, that it will re-
cewve every favourable consideration at your hands; and I fully rely,
that you. gentlemen of the jury, will give an impartial and mt:rulfgt
decision.” :

The prisoner, having concluded his address, sat down, evidently ex-
hausted by the effort, and overcome by his feclings. A glass of water
was brought him, of which he took a little; and while the witnesses to
his character were examining he leant his head on his hand, in which
he still held his handkerchiel in a manner to cover his face, as i1f un-
willing to be seen by his former friends. At times while they were
giving their evidence he appeared to weep.

The following witnesses were called to the prisoner’s character, and
examined by Mr. Gurney.

Mr, Jobn Wilson knew Mr. Fauntleroy about sixteen years, during
the whole of which time he maintained an unspotted character: he
always considered him a man of the strictest integrity.

Sir Charles Forbes had known Mr. Fauntieroy twelve years, and al-
ways considered him an honourable and obliging gentleman, and an
upright man of business.

Mr. Gray knew him fifteen years, and always considered him de-
serving of the highest esteem and respect.

Mr. Boft knew Mr. Fauntleroy twenty-seven years, and always
esteemed him a kind, an honourable, and upright man,

Mr. James Robinson knew him eleven years, during which time he
maintained as hizh a character as man could possess.

Mr. Wand was acquainted with Mr, Fauntleroy eleven years, his
character was most excellent. '

Mr. Lindsey knew Mr, Fauntleroy ten or twelve years; he did
not know a man who appeared to possess more kind or honourable
feelings.

ME’E Anthony Browne was acquainted with him sixteen or seventeen
vears, and always entertained the highest opinion of his honour and
integrity.

Mr. ‘hb‘r'}'att had known Mr. Fauntleroy twelve years, he was a most
honourable, kind-hearted, and benevolent man.

Mr. Montreal knew Mr. Fauntleroy twelve years; he was a most
benevolent man, and had the highest character for integrity.

Mr. Montagie was acquainted with Mr. Fauntleroy upwards of twelve



55

years, and never knew a more kind-hearted and humane man. His
«<character was most excellent.

Mr. Vernon was acquainted with him sixteen years; he always had
the character, and appeared to be a very kind, and a very honourable
man,

Mr. Ross knew Mr. Fauntleroy fourteen years; hehad the character
of being strictly honourable and upright.

Mr. Church knew Mr. Fauntleruy twelve years, and had much deal-
ing with him. He was always strictly honourable and upright in all
his transactions with witness, and had universally the character of the
strictest integrity and honour.

Mr. Yatinan was acquainted with him twelve years, he always pos-
sessed a character of the highest excelience.

Mr. Boshael was acquainted with Mr, Fauntleroy fifteen years,
and always considered him a perfectly honest and honourable man.

At ten minutes after two o’clock, Mr. Justice Park commenced his
charge to the Jury. The prisoner, he said, was indicted for forging a
power of attorney, for the transfer of stock belonging to Miss Frances
Young ; and for uttering such power of attorney knowing it to be forged.
There were other counts in the indictment, charging the prisoner with
an intent to defraud the Bank of England, and also 2 persun of the
name of Flower, to whom the transfer was made. The forgery they
mig.ht put out of their consideration, as there was no evidence of its
having been committed in London ; and they, as a London Jury, could
not try a prisoner for any crime not committed in the city ; but if
they should think that the count which charged the prisoner with
uttering the forged power of attworney at the Bank of England,
which was in the City of London, knowing it to be forged, finding
him guilty on that count, was the same in its legal effect as if he
were found guilty on all the counts in the indictments. The pri-
soner, in his address to the Jury, had mentioned a subject, which
at all times gave him, Mr. Justice Park, great concern, and on
which he would, at whatever peril, express his opinion as often
as it occurred. It was truly painful to hear persons in the prisoner’s
situation complaining of the obloquy they sufféred from misrepre-
sentations in the public prints, Such cruel conduct was ealeulated
to bring the minds of jurors to form a bad opinion of the person on
whom they were to pass judgment before they heard the evidence;
and if such cruelty towards the prisoner had been committed, he was
right to mention it, and declare its falsehood. He hoped, and was
confident, the jury would pay no attention to any thing they had ever
heard respecting the prisoner's conduct before they took the book into
their hands by which they hound themselves, before God, to deliver a
true verdict, according to the evidence. No man could be fit for the
administration of justice who allowed himsélf to be influenced, or
paid the least attention to any reports he might have heard before a
prisoner’s trial. If a prisoner were in reality the most wicked person
i the world, unless the evidence was sufficient to convict him of the
crime of which he was charged, a jury would be bound to acquit him,
The law did pot in any case admit witnesses to bad character, butonly
to good, and no man should be injured by reports to his prejudice.
The Attorney-General and the prisoner had both called on them to
dismiss those reports from their minds; and he, Mr. Justice Park,
had allowed the prisoner to proceed in the statement he had made in
answer to those cruel charges, though that statement did not go at all
to the point of the case to %e decided, as the only question for their
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consideration was, Whether the prisoner uttered the power of attorney
given in evidence in the manner imputed to him? That question con-
tained three points: the first was, Was that instrument forged ? the se-
cond, Did the prisoner utter it? the third and most important, Did the
prisoner, at the time of uttering it, know it to be forged ? If they were
salisfied by the evidence that those three things were proved, then the
prisoner’s guilt was legally proved, and it would be their duty to find a
verdict in conformity with that evidence., On the first point, Was the
instrument forged? by the law of England, a person wli‘lusn name was
forged to an instrument, in which they had an interest, could not be
a witness to prove the forgery—it was a strange rule of law, but the
Court was bound by it. Miss Young, whose name was forged to the
power of attorney in question, under which her stock had been trans-
ferred, could not therefore be ealled to prove the forgery. But the
Bank of England, to qualify her for being a witness, had replaced
her stock, and they had executed mutual releases to each other, by
which she ceased to have any interest in the question, whether that
instrument was a forgery or was genuine. She had proved that the
mname signed ¢ Frances Young” to the power of attorney produced, was
not her Enndwriting, andl that she had never authorised any persen to
write it; and James Tyson and John Watson, clerks in the bank in
which the prisoner was a partner, whose names were both sizned to the
instrument as witnesses of its execution by Miss Young, had proved
that their names were not in their handwriting, and that they had
never seen Miss Young in their lives, till they saw her at the police of-
fice, after the prisoner’s apprehension. This was as strong evidence
that the instrument was a forgery as could be produced, and must
be sufficient to satisfy every mind. The next point for their consi-
deration was, Did the prizoner utter the forged instrument? It
was statel in evidence, that by the practice of the Bank, the
names and description of persons to whom powers of attorney for the
transfer of stock are given must be stated to the Bank, and that the
person so appointed must go to the Bank, and demnand to act under
the power he has received. It was proved that the prisoner had ut-
tered the power of attorney produced, and bad demanded to act under
it, and had been allowed by the Bank so to act, they supposing it to be
a genuine power of attorney, and that Miss Young's stock had n con-
secuence been transferred by the prisoner’s directions: this was as
stronga proof of uttering ascould well be conceived. The third pointwas,
Did the prisoner at the time of uttering know that the instrument was a
forgery? On this an observation arose on the face of the paper itself.
Tyson and Watson, whose names were subseribed to 1t as witnesses,
proved that their names were not in their handwriting: and that the
words stating the instrument to he executed in their presence, were in
the handwriting of the prisoner, therefore he must have known it was a
forgery at the time he uttered it. 1t was also proved, that although
the transfer of this stock took place in 1815, the prisoner, for the pur-
pose of concealing that fact, continued to give Miss Y oung credit for its
amount, in lists of stock on which dividends were to be received by the
Bank in which he was a partner, and which lists he made out, down to
a short time before his apprehension. It was also proved, that there
was an cntry made in the hooks of the bankin which the prisoner was
a partner, and in his handwriting, dated the first of June, 1815, In
which he took credit for 20551, paid by him that day into their Bank,
and it was proved by the Stock-broker, who had sold Miss Young's
stock for the prisoner, under the forged Power of Attorney, that the
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sale was made on the first of June, 1815, and that the produce which
he paid over to the prisoner on that day, was 2053{. the very sum for
which the prisoner had taken credit in his own books. Mr. Gurney, the
prisoner’s counsel, had asked on this evidence, whether the money went
tn the credit of the prisoner’s private account, or was carried to the
general account of the firm: but that was a matter totally irrelevant,
and nothing that the prisoner had said on that point could at all form
a subject for their consideration. Their only inquiry was, whether
the prisoner had used the means imputed to him for obtaining the
money—not how he had employed it. Hitherto he had been exa-
mining the probability of the prisoner’s having uttered the Power of
Attorney with a guilty knowledge, as that probability was to be in-
ferred from the facts of the caze ; but after the next piece of evidence
he was to mention, what man could lay his hand on his heart and =ay
he was not convinced that the prisuner knew the Power of Attorney
was forged at the time be uttered 1t? Ile only said this, because the
risoner bad said 1t of himself; 1t was indeed such a document as he
ad never before seen, nor could expect to see, as it was evident no
one could keep such a document in his possession without exposing
himself to the greatest possible risk. The learned Judge here recapi-
tulated the statement of ’lank the officer, and Mr. Freshfield, of find-
ing the papers in the Frlsnncr‘s box, and first read the paper called
the sold note of Miss Young's stock, which, he obscrved, it had been
roved, if regularly sold, would have Leen filed and copied in the Bank
Emks, neither of which had been done. His Lordship then read
the document in which the prisoner had stated his having sold the
stock mentioned in it under powers of attorney which he forged ;
and then said—Is it possible for any man to say, after this evidence,
that there can be a doubt on the third point, that at the time the pri-
soner uttercd the Power of Attorney, he kuew it to be forged '—
he solemnly declared the fact under his own hand eight years ago.
No cause of any kind could ever induce an honest man to commit an
act of such atrocity. The prisoner says he did not intend to defraund,
but he had recorded under his own hand that he did the act to punish
the Bank. He has also said that he did it to support the credit of his
artners, but in an honest, or Christian mind, no motive could come
in competition with the misery such conduct must preduce. There
was one point in the prisoner’s fayuur, which _he was glad of, and it
might, perhaps, be some consolation to the prisoner’s mind—a great
number of respectable gentiemen had given him a very high charac-
ter.—It was the misforiune of those cases, that it was persons of high
character who had the opportunity of committing such frauds, no others
could doit. The Jury Ead heard other indictments against the pri-
soner read, but they must put them out of consideration, as they were
only to attend to the case on which they had heard evidence: but if
they were satisfied by the evidence they had heard, that the crime im-
puted to the prisener had been proved, if he had the character of an
angel, it would be their duty to find him guilty. If, on the other hand,
they, acting under the sacred oblization of an oath, enterained a
doubt of the prisoner’s guilt, then they would allow the excellent cha-
racter that had been given him to have its due weight; butif they
were satisfied with the evidence, however they migﬁr. lament—and
every man of feeling must Jament to see a man who had Fusaeﬁsed 0
high a character, in the prisoner’s unhappy situation, still they must
discharge their duty with firmness.
At ten minutes to three o'clock his Lordship concluded his charge.
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" The Jury then retired to deliberate on their verdiet, During their
absence, which lasted for twenty minutes, Mr. Fauntleroy resumed his
seat, and appeared extremely affected.—A sudden rush of the crowd
at the door of the Court announced the jreturn of the Jury. The pri-
soner stood up to hear his awful sentence, Whilst the Clerk of the
Arraigns called over the names of the Jury, and repeated the formal
words of the law—¢ How say you; are you agreed upon your verdict,
15 the prisoner at the bar, Guilty, or not Guilty " the most intense
interest was manifested by every person present. The foreman re-
_F;ied, “ Guilty of uttering the forged instrument, knowing it to be
rged.” At this moment every eye was fixed on the unhappy priso-
ner, who remained for a moment quite motionless, apparently un-
Eﬁngcious of every thing around him, and then sunk down into his
air,

A short conference then took place between the Bench and the
Counszel for the prosecution ; it was conductedin alow tone of voice,
but we presume it referred to the propriety of proceeding with the
other indictments. Upon its conclusion,

Mr. Justice Park addressed the prisoner, rather abruptly, ¢ Henry
Fauntleroy.” The prisoner, who was quite absorbed in his meditations,
started at the sound, and then looking wildly at the Bench, rose, as if'in
expectation that sentence was to be pronounced upon him. The learned
Judge proceeded— Henry Fauntleroy, the learned Attorney-General
does not feel it necessary, m the discharge of bis public duty, to pro-
ceed further with the indictments which have been preferred agamnst
you. It is no part of my painful duty to pronounce the awful sentence
of the law, which must follow the verdict which has just been recorded.
That unpleasing task will devolve on the learned Recorder, at the ter-
mination of the Sessions; but it is a part of my duty, as a Christian
Magistrate, to implore you that you bethink yourself seriously of your
latter end. {A convulsive sob from the wrelched prisoner was dis-
tinctly audible through the Court at this period of the Learned Judge's
address.) According to the constitution of this country, the preroga-
tive of mercy is vested in the Crown.—With that I have nothing to
do. I do not say that in your unhappy case the extension of mercy is
impossible; but I am afraid that, after the many serious acts which,
under your own handwriting, have been proved against you, invelving
S0 many persons in ruin, you would only deceive yourself by indulgin
in any hope of mercy on this side of the grave.—Let me then bl:seenﬁ
you to turn your heart to the contemplation of your awful situation,
and whilst it is yet in your power, use all your exertions to make peace
with your God.”

The unfortunate gentleman was now quite overpowered ; he was
barely able to raise up his hands, as it in the attitude of prayer, which
was the only answer he was capable of giving to the admonition of the
Learncd Judge. He was then removed from the bar, supported on the
arms of Mr. Wontner, and one of his friends, and was re-conducted to
the prison,

MR. FAUNTLEROY.

Almost immediately after this unfortunate gentleman was appre-
hended, he expressed to his fricnds his firmn opinion that any degznce
would be unavailing, and his anxious desire, by pleading Guilty, to spare
himself the pain and mortification of being exposed for howrs to the

zaze of a crowded court, and compelled to hear the narrative of his de-



59

linquencies ; and he stateil that it would be more congenial to his feel-
ings to adopt this course, because the prosecutors’ Counsel would then
be compelled to shut up their briefs, and thus all further publicity would
be avoided ; in deference, however, to the advice of his friends, he
Eiacer.l himself in the hands of lezal advisers, but he still wished it to
‘be understood, that if his Counsel should consider his case as hopeless,
he should be allowed to follow bis original intention of plcadingog?.li]ty.
His counsel met in consultation, and were unanimously of opinion that
he had no prospect, or even possible chance of escape,if the indictments
were framed as they had reason to expect, from the intelligence and
caution of the Bank agents, they would be; but they very properly
declined giving any advice to Mr. Fauntleroy as to the course he shoulidl
adopt, and left him to be guided entirely by his own feelings, as to whe-
ther or not he would take Dis trial, or p]eag Guilty. The result of this
conference was partially communicated to Mr., Fauntleroy on Tuesday
last, and more (])istinctg}' on the following day, by his brother, and his
solicitors, Messrs, Forbes and Harmer, and also by Mr. Mayhew, a re-
spectable solicitor, who, as a private friend, has most kindly and zea-
lously, throughout Mr. Fauntleroy’s Defence, afforded his professional
aid and advice, and it was expected that Mr. F. would decline putting
himself upon his trial ; on this point, however, nothing decisive was
elicited from him until Wednesday evening, when he addressed to Mr.
Forhes the following letter :—

“ My dear Mr. Forbes.—John and myseif have been a long time
talking upon this melancholy subject, and we have finally agreed to
plead Not Guilty. As, no doubt, the strongest case would be brought
forward first, and things may come out in extenuation, (though, per-
haps, it may not avail,) and may place me in a better view towards the
public eye—so pray be preparing a defence—Ever your's,

HENRY FAUNTLEROY.”

It should be remarked, that Mr. Fauntleroy was daily annoyed by
seeing the unfounded slanders propagated respecting him in the public
prints; and he was dreadfully distressed and nervous on finding his
name frequently associated with that of the cold-blooded muriderer
Thurtell. These attacks unsettled his resclves, and induced him to put
himself upon his trial, if it was only to have the opportunity of answer-
ing the numerous calumnies propagated against him, as appears by the
following letter which he addressed to Messrs. Forbes, Mayhew, and
Harmer.

“ My dear Sirs,—Ever since my imprisonment, the utmost inge-
nuity has been exercised in inventing, and the greatest pains taken in
gmpﬁgﬂting thie most unfounded and calumnious reports respecting me.

daily hoped that the fallen fortunes, the distressing and appalling
situation of an unfortunate and wretched man, would excite eommise-
ration in the heart of the most unfeeling and obdurate, and that these
cruel slanders would cease on the slightest reflection ; in this expecta-
tion, however, 1 was disappointed, and each succeeding day I was
doomed to find myself accused of crimes I never commitied, and with
a course of proflizgacy and vice for which there was no foundation.
Indeed, I have been depicted in such odious colours, that it
would be painful to any one hereafier to acknowledge any
relationship or acquaintance with me; and if these imputations
remained uncontradicted, and were credited, no one could think
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¢{ my memory without sensations of indignation and of hor-
ror. Had my unfeeling assailants confined themselves to state-
ments and animadversions on the magnitude and atrocity of the offences
for which I was to take my trial, [ shiould not have complained : there
are, however, but few crimes in the catalogue of human depravity,
which have not been imputed to me. The distress and anguish of

aind which I have naturally felt at these reiterated slanders have been

rendered additionally acute by the pain which I knew they would in-
flict on those who are dearer to me than life itself’: so far, however, as
1 am concerned, they will shortly be of little consequence ; but I can-
not bear the reflection, that the sting should remain to tortureé the dear
relatives and friends who will survive me. It is this consideration, and
not any hope of averting my fate, that has induced me to undergo the
distressing and disgracetul ordeal of a public trial, as the only means
by which 1 shall have the opportunity of proving to the world that the
immense sums which it was supposed, and asserted, that I alone had

-acquired and squandered away, were really never in my individual pos-

session ; that every shilling was placed to the house account, and ap-
propriated generally to the concerns of Marsh and Company; and that,
although 1 have been eriminal, others are not infallible ; and I owe it
as a debt of gratitude to those dear connexions who have not deserted

.me in my greatand anxious tribulations, to rescue my memory, as far

as]am alnﬁa, from unfounded calumny; and I do hope, that when all
the circumstances of my unfortunate case are reviewed, it will appear
to every impartial and liberal-minded man, that I have been a victim
to the peculiar circumstances in which I had unfortunately been placed;
and, although by the existing laws of the country I may be justly
doomed to suffer the heaviest punishment those laws can inflict, stid
that I am not altogether undeserving the commiseration and the pity
of my fellow-creatures,

¢ The detailed statement I have already handed to you, relates the
history of my misfortunes, at least so far as they led to the com-
mission of the offences with which 1 am charged, and the ap-
propriation of the money. I shall not, therefure, here trouble you
with a repetition, but shall confine myself to short and general chser-
vations on the reproachful and slanderous reports which have been
so widely circulated regarding the incidents, or the imagined occur-
rences of my private life.

¢ I am charged with baving been a gambler. DMy answer is, that I
was never in 2 gaming-house in l:Jy life. Although a member of two
clubs, the Albion and the Stratford, I never played at cards, or at dice
at either, nor did I ever play at any other game of chance.

¢ ] have been accused of having ruined a lady, and refused to make
reparation until threatened by her brother to call me out; and it was
added, that I had deserted her the moment she had the greatest claim

‘1o my protection. Delicacy forbids me entering into an explanation

on this subject, further than to declare, that what I did was perfectly
voluntary, and with the most laudable and honourable motives; and
o far from the lady’s brother having interfered, he was at the time
alluded to in the West Indies. Coul all the circumstances be ex-
posed, and my conduct and motives duly appreciated, I {feel convinced
that every liberal minded man would rather ai};plaud than censure
them; and I feel pleasure in stating, that the lady in question
has always been, 2nd now is, actuated by the best feelings towards me.

“ I am reproached with a dishonourable seduction in France.—I

* never was upon the Continent but one night in my life (i. e. Calais),
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and therefore could not have seduced any young woman from a con-
vent, which has been falsely attributed to me.

“ I am accused of keeping many expensive establishments for my
amours,—This I pusilhzlfj eny; I never kept any one such esta-
blishment. I had one house at Lambeth, and one at Brighton. The
one at Lambeth was my house—as my children were there ; at this no
extravagance was permitted, for I was living there in perfect retire-
ment atter my hours of business. The expense of the Brighton esta-
blishment, I have before described in my other remarks, as altosether
not exceeding 340. a year,

“ 1 am accused of carrying on an intimacy with Mrs, Bertram, and
by that means squandering away money. My 'only knowledge of
this woman I have already described to you, and which will appear to
have been a mere temporary and slight acquaintance, which ceased
many years ago.

¢ I am charged with having prodizally, or at least, inadvertently,
lent money to persons of loose character : this I also deny. I never
lent to any such persons, nor did I advance any sums without re-
celving a security.

“ 1 am charged with having settled upon various females an-
nuities of the yearly value of 2,200..; and, it has been said, that L
have fraudently invested monies in the funds to answer the pay-
ment of such annuities. This, like all the others, is a gross fabri-
cation.

% I am charged with having invested monies in my name, or in that
of trustees, in the Foreign Funds, or with having deposited sums of
great magnitude with confederates. This I positively deny: I have
no investment whatever in any foreign or other funds, neither have L
deposited with any person, or in any way concealed, one single guinea.
I have always felt too much interest and devotion for the welfare and
keeping up the credit of the banking-house to thick, for one moment,
of makiug the least provision for myself; as the sacrifices I have
made for years past, in sleepless nights and anzious days, and my pre-
sent unhappy situation, must too truly testify.

I cannot conclude without offering my grateful thanks to those
dear friends, who, notwithstanding the calumnies that have been
heaped npon me, have still consoled me by their kind attentions ; to
all of them I give my humble, best, sincere blessing, and bid them a
last adieu.

¢ I remain, dear Sirs,
¢ Your ever sincere and affectionate,
“ HENRY FAUNTLEROY.”

In obedience to Mr. Fauntleroy’s wishes, the substance of his state-
ment was put into form, as a defence, and the draft was on Friday
evening submitted to his insgection, He read and approved ir, and
promised, not only to copy it by the following morning ; but to read it
igf l:h]f_ jury ; and at ten o'clock at night, Mr. Mayhew and his solicitors

t him.

In the early part of the last week the mind of Mr. Fauntleroy ap-
peared to be more distressed than at any previous time of his impri-
sonment : this probably arose from the conflict in his mind as to the
course he should take respecting his trial, the anxiety he was under to
wind up all his worldly affairs, and the anguish he felt at finding him-
self, even to nearly the eve of his ordeal, stizmatized and traduced in
almost every direction, But what appeared the most to affect and un-
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nerve him, was the information he received, that one individual, in

rticular, was assisting in the propagation of slanders against him,
F:::m whom, of all others, he had a right to expect sympathy, and the
most unremitting and anxious attentions. This conduct, from a man
who was bound te him by peculiar ties, was, as the unfortunate gentle-
man expressed himself,

“ The unkindest stab of all,”

and his mind was wholly unprepared to meet it; and the unfeeling
conduct of this individual, 1t is believed, more than any other considera-
tion, induced Mr. Fauntleroy to stand his trial.  When Mr. Fauntle-
Toy’s solicitors and friends endeavoured to soothe and comfort him, his
feelings frequently overpowered him—his grateful heart appeared to
swell as if ready to burst from his bosom—he endeavoured to speak,
but his utterance was choked, and embracing alternately all those
around him, he burst into tears, and sunk exhausted under the ebulli-
tion of his feelings; as the time of trial, however, approached, he be-
came more calm ; and when his concerns were finally settled and ar-
ranged, he assumed his wonted composure and resignation.

"hen this unfortunate individual left the Court on Saturday after-
noon, he exclaimed, * Thank God, this trial is over,” He was greatly
exhausted, and some time elapsed before his spirits were sufficiently re-
stored to enable him to take refreshment. - Ie was visited by his At-
torney, and several friends, to whom he said he was satisfied with the’
trial, and the Jury could not, in his opinion, have returned any other
verdict. One of the Jurors wept very much, and several of them were
deeply affected. DMr. Fauntleroy slept better on Saturday night than
he I]w.d done on any night during the preceding week; and yesterday
morning he attended divine service at the chapel in Newszate. The
Rev. Mr. Cotton preached a very appropriate discourse. He took for
his text the following words.—< Believe in the Lord Jesus Christ, and
thou shalt be saved.”” Mr. Fauntleroy conducted himself in the most
decorous manner, and appeared to have no hope except beyond the
grave, Ile was occasionally affected, particularly after the worthy di-
vine had repeated Christ’s promises of pardon to repentant sinners, and
when he called upon each of his hearers, who were under conviction,
in the following words :—* Set'thy house in order, for to-morrow thou
shalt surely die” During the prayers, Mr. Fauntleroy joined in the
responses with unusual fervour.  After serviee, on retining to his room,
he became exceedingly dejected, and spent the remainder of the day in
writing to one of his partners, and in reading. _ J

The subject which more particularly calls for explanation, 1s
the conduct of his (Mr. Fauntleroy’s) partners, who, if they had
used the common caution of men of business, or had perform-
ed the imperative duty which devolved ‘upon them as the re.
ceivers and guardians of the property of others, would, long
since, have discovered the frauds practised upon the Bank of
England; the real state of their own finances; and, perhaps,
have been enabled, by timely interference, mot only to have
saved the life of their unhappy partner, but at least to have pre-
vented his sinking to the grave covered with such a multiplied weight’
of crime—forgeries, that are yet, we fear, ‘but partially developed, such
are the distressing discoveries which every day attends the perseverance
of the Bank Officers. The Assignees’ accounts are now deposited with
Messrs. Coutts, and it may be some satisfaction to theereditors to know,
that the assets in money are much more considerable than was by many

"
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anticipated, the securities are very numerous and heavy, but in some
instances of a doubtful character. In declaring the dividend, much
will depend upon a question which it is said the Bank intend raising
to reimburse themselves for a portion of their very heavy losses—
namely, to be permitted to prove against the estate as general
creditors, on showing that a great proportion of the proceeds of the
forgerieshavebeen applicd to the support of the house, and the upholding
of itssalvency. But we have some reasons for believing that this will not
be the only difficulty to be arranged by the yet unprejudiced partners
of the firm. What, if'it should turn out that in two instances private
accounts have been overdrawn to a large amount by those who ought
to have knowh the recal state of the affairs long, very long since, It
hehoves the ereditors to demand the fullest explanation upon this
point ; we have no wish to pursueit as far as we might, lest we should
appear to be actuated by undue severity towards the unfortunate
man.

On the subject of Mr. Fauntleroy’s private expenditure, we have the
authority of one who has known him intimately, and who is above re-
proach, to say that it has never exceeded 1500/ per annum ; indeed it
could not, for in all the relations of private life he was unostentatious,
fond of seclusion, avoiding expensive parties, and appearing most happy
when surrounded by his own family, and the few private friends who
met him in his retreat. Driven by a species of madness tc commit the
crime for which his life is forfeited, he was yet in business the most
attentive, indefatizable man that ever moved in a similar situation, and
in all private transactions, above even the suspicion of deceit. What
renders his conduet the more inexplicable is the production of the do-
cument avowing his crime, left carelessly discoverable, and that too
without the slightest ﬁlljliﬂifﬁ-‘“t intention of the delinquent to make his
escape—an act which he might safely effected any day he pleased, u
to the moment of his apprehension, with one hundred thousand pﬁundlg
in his pussession. We cannot help thinking that there is more in this
case than has yet met the public eye.

The editor of the Sunday Times thus strongly expresses himself
upon the subject :—* Thus has come to a close, that trial which has
recently become the themeof conversation, and which has given rise
to so many destructive opinions, However strong the evidence which
was brought against Fauntleroy, and however stern and vindictive the
prejudices which were arrayed against him, some feeling of dis-
appointment must be felt at the pu%iicaﬂnn of his defence. It wasa
eold, studied, and rhetorical attempt—evidently prepared with labour,
and delivered like one more disposed to gratify himself, than to
satisfy others. Neither its composition ner its delivery could warm
the affections ; it passed over the surface of the mind without leaving
a trace or vestige of its progress. In one respect it may said to be
valuable—in affording proof, 1f his statement is to be credited, of the
participation of the other partners in Berners-street,in the guilt of the
infatuated erviminal—his was the daring, theirs the cowardice of
crime. We can scarcely suppose that a man, standing in the awful
situation which he did, would string together a tissue of false-
hoods which were so easy of refutation, and which would be
scanned with eagle eye by those persons who were inculpated
in them. From the first moment when the forgeries were brought
to light, we declared our belief that others must have shared in
the prizes which Fauntleroy had seized, at the risk of his life; and now,
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if his farewell appeal to the world is to be credited, we have more than
suspicions on which to attach a moral, if not a criminal responsibility to
the partners. But can this implication afford palliation or excuse for his
conduct?  We answer no. If, in a moment of phrenzied zeal for the
interests of the house, he had committed the rash act, having in his
mind the certainty of atoning for it ; or if led by anxiety for his moral
fame, from the number of unfortunate persons whose property was
bound up in it, he had stepped beyond the strict rules of justice—nay,
even if deluded by the confidence of others, he had rasily interfered
with those funds which ought to have been held sacred, charity miﬂ'ht
have softened down the harsh and revolting features of his case. But
when, according to his own confession, the banking establishment in
1807 was “ embarrassed,” by the loss of 20,000L the year in which he
was installed as a partner; and when three years afterwards it sus-
tained a diminution of capital to the enormous extent of 170,000L;
and when all this while the parties were pasturing quietly on the
annual fruits of the concern, callous to the impending ruin, and care-
less what hearts were withered, and what fortunes fractured—it was
something more than rashness—it was”positive criminality to barter
away the money of third parties in such an experiment. As to his
professions of misplaced zeal, for the interests of the house, they looked
aukward when placed beside the account of the stock drawn out on
forged warrants, dated in 1819, which contains a deep expression of
malice against the firm. Could a man, after having written such a
paper, and having keEt it in his possession for five years, ever expect
to take credit for his disinterested endeavours to prop an establishment
whose fate he had so fearlessly doomed ? Any feeling which might be
thought to plead in his favour, from a hasty and perilous confidence
in future resources, is also set at rest, by the long eontinuance of his
peculations, by means of the forged warrants; for surely that con-
fidence must have been great, indeed, which could stand the shock of
so many embarrassments, carried through a seriesof years.

We refrain from noticing the special finding of the Jury; for as
there is no difference in the punishment awarded by the law, we see
none in this case in the offence charged. While the guilty knowledge
of the forgery is found by the verdict, the act of forgeryis not dis-
proved. It is not to be presumed that the high prerogative of mercy
will be the price awarded to the technicalities of the law—Thank God !
it is ]_'ESE[‘\’E(f for nobler purposes.

It is not true, as some pretend to say, that his future fate ever seri-
ously occupied his mind during his confinement. In the course of the
day he was engaged in the disposal and distribution of his personal ef-
fects, and in writing out memoranda of the bank affairs. In theevening,
when alone, he indulged himself with reading works of amusement. A
few nights before his trial,, he told his counsel, Mr. Broderick, that he
had a strong inclination to plead Guilty to the indictment; and frank]
asked his opinion as to the propriety of his conduct. Mr. Brnderici
answered, that although he could not held out any hopes for him, yet
he dissuaded him from adopting this course, as he would thus lose the
benefit of any technical objections that might arise in the course of the
trial. Fauntieroy shook his head incredulously, and the conversation
dropped.—The vanity of Fauntleroy was excessive. He had adopted
the foolish idea that he strongly resembled Buonaparte in the shape of
his face; and the sycophants who surrounded him took care to favour
this conception, That he might always have an image of the great
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prototype before him, he procured a marble bust of Napoleon, which

cost him an enormous sum, and this he placed in the most conspicu-

ous part of his drawing-room. On the opposite side was a bust of

himself, which, thmugﬂ the kindness of the sculptor, who had doubt-

less got his cue, was made in some of the features, particularly in

thi; hruv;:r and the nose, to bear a striking resemblance to those of Na-
oleon,

% The trial of Mr. Fauntleroy took place at the Old Eaile;,", and a ver-
dict of Guilty was returned against him. The interest excited was pro-
digiously great, and the concourse of spectators proportionably nume-
rous. The Attorney-General, who was retained for the prosecution,

roduced the most extraokdinary document imaginable in the Court,

eing neither more nor less than a list, in the prisoner’s handwriting,
signed by himself, of the various forgeries committed by him to keep
up the credit of the house—this was {%‘dtﬁd so long ago as 1816.

“ The falsehood of all the statements respecung Mr. Fauntleroy’s
private extravagance, was clearly shown, and upon our minds the most
striking part of the whole transaction, or series of transactions, is the
declared ignorance of Mr. Fauntleroy’s partners of the proceedings and
the measures he was taking to support the credit of the firm. It should
seem that these gentlemen ought to have known enough of the affairs
of their own establishment to feel the difference produced by the ac-
quisition of 170,000/. to which they were not entitled. We should
ourselves like to be informad what is the actual state of Mr. Marsh's
R;i\ra.te account with the house at this moment, and what the state of

r. Graham's account—the Commissioners of Bankruptcy will, we
presume, get at this information, and it is highly important that they
should do so. The life of one partner is sacrificed to the offended
laws of his country—oftended by his forzeries for the benefit of the
firm—it is but right that the country should be satisfied of the conduct
of the other parties during the struggle which, it appears that Mr.
Fauntleroy made, at the hazard of his existence, to preserve their repu-
tation.”—John Bull. :

To show how well the Legislature has guarded the stock-holder
(as far as capital punishment will do it) against such offences as those
charged against Mr, Fauntleroy, we copy the following analysis of the
enactments from Mr. Hammond’s valuable Appendix to the Report of
the Committee on the Criminal Law : —

1. Death, sans clergy, for forging any power to transfer stock, or to
reccive annuity or divﬁcnds; and for forging to such power the name
of the proprietor or person entitled ; and for demanding or endeavonr-
ing to have stock transferred, or annuity or dividend received under
such forged power ; and for personating the proprictor of stock, annuity
or dividend.—8 Geo L. cap. 22. sect. 1.

2. Death, sans clerzy, for forging any power to transfer stock, or to
receive annuity,or dividend ; and for forging to such ]]mwer the name of
the prﬂﬁrietnr or person entitled ; and for demanding or endeavour-
ing to have stock transferred, or annuity or dividend received under
such forged power; and for personating the proprietor of stock,
annuity or dividend.—31 Geo. IL. cap. 22, sect. TTI.] '

3. Death, sans clergy, for forging any power to transfer stock or an-
nuity, or to receive annuity or dividend; and for forging to such
power the name of the proprietor or person entitled ; and for de.
manding or endeavouring to have stock or annuity transferred, o
dnnuity or dividend received under such forged power; and for pero
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sonating the proprietor of stock, annuity, or dividend.—4 G, IIL,
c. 23, 5. 15. : s i
4. Death, sans clergy, for making a transfer in the Bank books h{; :
stock, annuity, orother funds transferrable at the Bank in the name of
one not the proprietor.—33 G. IIL. ¢. 50. s. 1. & ;

5. Death, sans clergy, for forging a transfer of stock, annuity,
or other funds ; and for uttering such forged transfer.—33 Geo. I1I.
. 30. s. 2. | ‘

6. Death, sans clergy, for making a false entry, or altering an entry
in the Bank books ; and for falsifying the accounts therein—385 G. II1.
€. 30. 5. 3.

7. Seven years' transportation for a servant of the Bank making out
a false dividend warrant,.—33 Geo. I11. ¢. 30. s. 4. B

8. Death, sans clergy, for forging any power to transfer certain
stock or annuity, or to receive certain annuity or dividend ; and for
forging to such power the name of the proprietor or person entitled ;
and for demanding or endeavouring to have certain stock or annnity .
transferred, or certain annuity or dividend received under such forged
power ; and for personating the proprietor of certain stock, annuity, or
dividend.—35 G, I11. c. 66. 5. 4.

9. Death, sans clergy, for forging certain dividend warrants or in-
dorsement thereon; and for uttering the same; and for demandiog
the contents thereof.—35 G. III. c. 66. 5.5.

10. Death, sans clerzy, for making a transfer in the Bank books, of
certain stock or annuity, in the name of one not the proprietor.—
35 G, IIIL. c. 66. 5. 7.

11. Death, sans clergy, for forging transfers of certain stock or an-.
nuity ; and for uttering the same,—35 Geo. III. c. 66. s. 8.

12. Death, sans clergy, for making a false entry, or altering an
entry in certain Bank books ; and for falsifying the accounts therein.—
35 Geo. L11. c. 66. 5. 9.

13. Seven years’ transportation for a servant of the Bank mak-
ing out a certain false dvidend warrant.—35 Geo. IIL. c. G6.
5. 10.

14. Death, sans clergy, for forging any power to transfer eertain
stock or annuity ; or to receive certain apnuity or dividend ; and for
forging to such power the name of the proprietor or person entitled ;.
and for demanding or endeavouring to have certain stock or annuity
transferred, or certain annuity or dividend received under such forged
power ; and for personating the proprietor of certain stock, annuity,
or dividend.—37 Geo: I1L. c. 46. s. 4.

15. Death, sans clergy, for forging certain dividend warrants, or in-
dorsement thereon ; and for uttering the same ; and for demanding the
contents thereof —37 Geo. I11. c. 46. s. 5. 3 _

16. Death, sans clergy, for making a transfer in the Bank books of
certain stock or annuity, in the name of one not the proprietor.—37
Geo. 1II. ¢. 46. 5. 7.

17, Death, sans clergy, for forging transfers of certain stock or an-
nuity ; and for uttering the same.—37 Geo. 111. ¢, 46. s. 8.

W 18. Death, sans clergy, for making a false entry, or altering an entry
in certain Bank beoks; and for falsifying the accounts therein.—S$7
Geo. 111 c. 46. 5. 9,

19, Seven years’ transportation for a servant of the Bank making
out a certain ialse dividend warrant.—37 Geo, I11, ¢, 46, 8. 10.

20. Felony, with seven ycars’ transportation, or other losser, punishi-
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